December Board Meeting
To be held at the offices of
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
6701 Shirley Avenue
Austin, TX 78752

Tuesday, December 6, 2022
10:30 a.m.



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
To be held at the offices of
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
6701 Shirley Avenue
Austin, Texas 78752

December 6, 2022
10:30 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL Bill Dietz, Chair
CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM

Pledge of Allegiance — I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America, and to the Republic for which it
stands, one Nation under God, indivisible, with liberty and justice for all.
Texas Allegiance — Honor the Texas flag; | pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.

The Board of Directors of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation will meet to consider and possibly act on the
following:

PUBLIC COMMENT

PRESIDENT’S REPORT David Long
Tab A: Homeownership Finance Report
Tab B: Development Finance Report
Tab C: Quarterly Compliance and Resident Services Reports

Tab D: Quarterly Fundraising Report
Tab E: Monthly Financial Reports

ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING:

Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting held on October 18,
2022.
Tab 2 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Independent Financial and

Single Audit Reports.

Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Regarding the Submission of One or More
Applications for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds to the Texas Bond Review Board for Qualified
Mortgage Revenue Bonds.

Tab 4 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and
Delivery of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 2023A (Non-AMT); Authorizing a Trust
Indenture, Official Statement, Bond Purchase Agreement and Continuing Disclosure Agreement Relating
to Such Bonds, Making Certain Findings and Determinations; Authorizing the Execution of Documents
and Instruments Necessary or Convenient to Carry Out the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
Single Family Home Loan Program Relating to Such Bonds; and Containing Other Matters Incident and
Related Thereto.

Tab 5 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Regarding the Submission of one or more
Applications for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notices of Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond



Applications to the Texas Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse Expenditures
with Proceeds of Future Debt for Juniper Creek Apartments.

Tab 6 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the Texas State Affordable
Housing Corporation to take preliminary action to carry out the financing of Juniper Creek located in
Austin, Texas, including creating entities, negotiating finance documents, and filing applications to obtain
debt and grant financing for the Project.

Tab 7 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Regarding the Submission of one or more
Applications for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds, Notices of Intention to Issue Bonds and State Bond
Applications to the Texas Bond Review Board and Declaration of Expectation to Reimburse Expenditures
with Proceeds of Future Debt for Norman Commons Apartments.

Tab 8 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution approving a Texas Housing Impact Fund
Loan to June West, LLC in an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 for the June West Apartments project.

Tab 9 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval for Publication and Public Comment of the Draft of the
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s 2023 Annual Action Plan.

Tab 10 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Texas Foundations Fund: Disaster Recovery
Guidelines.

CLOSED MEETING:

Consultation with legal counsel on legal matters — Texas Government Code § 551.071

Deliberation regarding purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property — Texas Government Code § 551.072

Deliberation regarding prospective gift or donation to the state or Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation — Texas
Government Code § 551.073

Personnel Matters — Texas Government Code § 551.074

Implementation of security personnel or devices — Texas Government Code § 551.076

Other matters authorized under the Texas Government Code

ACTION ITEMS IN OPEN MEETING:

Action in Open Meeting on Items Discussed in Closed Executive Session
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CLOSING COMMENTS

ADJOURN

A Board member of the Corporation may participate in a Board meeting by video conference pursuant to Section 551.127 of
the Texas Government Code. A quorum of the Board will meet at the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s
headquarters located at 6701 Shirley Avenue., Austin Texas, 78752.

Individuals who require auxiliary aids or services for this meeting should contact Rebecca DeLeon, ADA Responsible
Employee, at 512-220-1174 or Relay Texas at 1-800-735-2989 at least two days before the meeting so that the appropriate
arrangements can be made.

Section 46.035 of the Texas Penal Code prohibits handgun licensees from carrying their handguns at government meetings
such as this one. This prohibition applies to both concealed carry and open carry by handgun licensees. Handgun licensees
are required by law to refrain from carrying their handguns at this meeting.

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation reserves the right to recess this meeting (without adjourning) and convene at a
later stated time, if and to the extent allowed by law. If Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation adjourns this meeting
and reconvenes at a later time, the later meeting will be held in the same location as this meeting. Texas State Affordable
Housing Corporation also reserves the right to proceed into a closed meeting during the meeting in accordance with the
Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. If permitted by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the
Texas Government Code, any item on this Agenda to be discussed in open meeting may also be discussed by the Board (and
any other authorized persons) in closed meeting.



President’s Report



Tab A
Homeownership Finance Report



Homeownership
All Programs

# of Households by Month

# of Households

January February

Loan Type

o FHA - Purchase

e Conv. - Purch.
» VA - Purchase
USDA-RHS Purch.

5.33%
17.67% —

—76.34%

68.90K

Average Annual Income

239K

Average of Loan Amount

5.32%

Average Interest Rate

690

Average Credit Score

1772

Households Served

2

Average Household Size



Homeownership
DPA Snapshot

Loan Volume by Month

1,000

:
S
S 500
January February March
Loan Type

® Conv. - Purch.
o VA - Purchase
USDA-RHS ...

April

Month

— 78.46%

June July August

$8,231

Average DPA Awarded

$59,799,987

Total DPA Awarded

69.60K

Average Annual Income

235K

Average Loan Amount

1709M

Total Loan Volume

71265

Households Served

5.35%

Average Interest Rate

689

Averaqge Credit Score

2

Average Household Size



Homeownership

MCC Snapshot 61.61K

# of MCCs by Month Average Annual Income

233K

Average of Loan Amount

9.15%

Average Interest Rate

700

# of MCCs

January February

Loan Type Average Credit Score
® FHA - Purchase 1 1 84
e Conv. - Purch. 32.43% —

Issued MCCs

o VA - Purchase
USDA-RHS Purch.

—63.18%

2

Average Household Size



Homeownership Household Ethnicity
All Programs

2.87%
. 8.92%
Professions D
Occupation % of Total -
v @ Hispanic
Other 85.58% 14.43% — —40.55%  ewnite
® Black
Teacher 5.71% .
: Not Defined
Veteran 2.68% ®Other

Active Military 1.21%
Peace Officer 0.99%
Prof Nurse Fac 0.83%
Fire Fighter 0.75%
Corrections Off 0.66% 31.52% —/
Public Sec Off 0.29%

Asian/Pac Isle

Am Ind/Alsk Nat

New/Existing Home

Allied Hlth Fac 0.28% 28.55% —
Sch Counselor 0.27%
Teacher Aide 0.27% New/EXis...
EMS Personnel 0.27% oFE
County Jailer 0.13%
oN

School Nurse 0.06%

Sch Librarian 0.02% )
Total 100.00% 71.45% ~




Homeownership
All Programs

Top Lenders

Top Lenders # of Loans
v

Fairway Independent Mortgage Corporation
Everett Financial, dba Supreme Lending
Gateway Mortgage, a division of Gateway
Amcap Mortgage, LTD

PrimeLending

DHI Mortgage Company, Ltd.

SFMC, LP dba Service First Mortgage Comp
Cardinal Financial Company
loanDepot.com LLC

Guild Mortgage Corporation

Guaranteed Rate

CMG Mortgage, Inc. dba CMG Financial
American Pacific Mortgage Corporation
Security National Mortgage Company
KBHS Home Loan, LLC

T2 Financial dba Revolution Mortgage
Academy Mortgage Corporation

Thrive Mortgage, LLC

Ark-La-Tex Financial (Benchmark Mtg.)
Movement Mortgage, LLC

Lennar Mortgage, LLC

Crosscountry Mortgage, LLC

otal

~~\

5321

Top Originating Counties

Harris I 1114

Bexar I 617
Dallas [ 603
Tarrant [ 592
Bell N 256
Midland [ 217
Montgomery I 213
Kaufman [0 206
Denton [0 204
Ector [0 183
Brazoria [0 174
El Paso [0 166
Nueces [0 146
Galveston [0 145
Hidalgo [0 143
Collin [ 142

County

Williamson 00 119
Johnson [0 116
Ellis B2 110
Fort Bend [0 109
Hunt 00 108
Webb W 107 |
0 500

# of Loans

1,000

10



Tab B

Development Finance Report

11



Affordable Communities of Texas Program (ACT)

This past month, TSAHC acquired a single-family home in Groves, Texas through the National Community
Stabilization Trust (NCST). Longtime local partner, Legacy Community Development Corporation, will
finance the purchase and rehabilitation with their existing revolving line of credit.

1418 N Navidad, in San Antonio, is under contract with an income eligible buyer. Staff is hopeful to
complete the home sale by the end of the year.

Regarding our three ACT properties in Greenville, certificates of occupancy are anticipated by the end of
the month. All three homes are being marketed to low- and moderate-income households and we have

received one homebuyer application to date.

Here is a summary of the past months’ portfolio activity:

Portfolio as of Portf:flio as
Program Octzc:JbZle 1, | Transferred Sold November Current Portfolio Value
17, 2022
ACT Land Bank 17 18 $709,742.68
ACT Land Trust 1 1 $650,000.00
Totals 18 19 $1,359,742.68

Our current pipeline report:
e 2 properties listed for sale
e 7 homes under construction
e 3 properties leased to Local Partner
e 4 properties in predevelopment
e 3 properties searching for a Local Partner

Texas Housing Impact Fund

In November, TSAHC received full repayment of its short-term loan for the Saison North Apartments in
Austin. Construction is now underway. The project’s construction financing includes TSAHC’s $375,000
Affordable Housing Partnership (AHP) loan that requires the property to reserve five-units for persons
with disabilities.

A closing for the Manor Town Phase Il $225,000 AHP loan also occurred mid-November. The project will
have 20 total units with three units reserved for persons with disabilities.

This month, staff will present a proposed loan for the June West Apartments in Austin. The loan request

is for $3,000,000 in construction financing. Additional materials and a resolution are included in the board
book.

12



Multifamily Bond Program

The La Vista de Lopez Project received approval from the Texas Bond Review Board on November 17, by
unanimous vote. The 27-units senior housing project in Austin is expecting to close on all financing by
mid-January 2023. La Vista de Lopez also includes a $375,000 AHP loan that will close at the same time,
and reserve five units for persons with disabilities.

Staff will present a new bond application for approval of an inducement bond resolution. Norman
Crossing is a 156-unit apartment project located in Austin. The total bond amount requested is $38
million, with a planned closing by August 2023. Additional details are included in the staff write-up for the
agenda item.

Finally, staff is returning to the Board with two agenda items for the Juniper Creek project. The Board
originally approved an inducement resolution for the project in January 2022. The first action requested
of the Board is to increase the maximum bond amount for the project, while the second action will
authorize TSAHC to join the ownership entity of the project. Full details are provided in the write-ups
included in the board book.

13



Tab C
Quarterly Compliance and

Resident Services Reports

14



Compliance Report QTR 3
2022

Quarterly Compliance Status for TSAHC

As of the 3rd Quarter Ending September 31, 2022

Set-Aside Requirements |

40% of units at 60% AMI
Remaining units at 80% AMI
Total Affordable Units (40% Required)

DALCOR
Pine Club (Beaumont) Ridgewood (Huntsville) Saddlewood Club (Bryan)
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Tealwood Club (Wichita Falls)

Willowgreen (Houston)

Woodglen Park (Dallas)

40% of units at 60% AMI
Remaining units at 80% AMI
Total Affordable Units (40% Required)

20% of units at 50% AMI
75% of units at 80% AMI
Total Affordable Units (75% Required)

40% of units at 60% AMI
Total Affordable Units (40% Required)

20% of units at 50% AMI
100% of units at 80% AMI

100.0% 99.7% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

| Commonwealth | Cesar Chavez Foundation |

White Rock (San Antonio) Villa Rodriguez (San Antonio)

21.1% 22.0%
77.1% 75.4%
77.1% 75.4%

| QOdyssey Properties | DHI Woodside | Midland Leased Housing

Marshall Meadows (San Antonio) Woodside Village (Palestine) | Ventura at Tradewinds

55.2% 98.9% 100.0%
55.2% 98.9% 100.0%

| GESC |  Mary Lee Foundation |

Rita Blanca (Dalhart) The Willows (Austin)

21.4% 92.2%
100% 100.0%
100% 100.0%

Total Affordable Units (100% Required)

Palladium Glenn Heights LD

| Texas Housing Foundation |

EC Marshall, LLC

Palladium Glenn Heights (Glenn Heights Gateway Northwest (Georgetown)

Marshall Apartments

40% of units at 60% AMI 92.2% 97.7% 100%
Total Affordable Units (40% Required) 92.2% 97.7% 100%
THF Palladium Midland
Palladium Midland (Midland)
40% of units at 60% AMI 78.0%
78% of units at 80% AMI 78.3%
Total Affordable Units (78% Required) 78.3%
| Steele
Peoples El Shaddai (Dallas) St James Manor (Dallas) Brooks Manor (West Columbia)
5% of units at 30% AMI 21.0% 18.0% 8%
40% of units at 60% AMI 100.0% 100.0% 100%
Total Affordable Units (40% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100%
| Steele
Pythian Manor (Dallas)
5% of units at 30% AMI 11.8%
40% of units at 60% AMI 100.0%
Total Affordable Units (40% Required) 100.0%

LRC Shady Oaks Manor

| Gardens at Balch Springs, LP |

W Daniels Towners |, LP

Shady Oaks Manor (Ft. Worth)

IGarden at Balch Springs (Balch Sprin‘

W. Leo Daniels (Houston)

20% of units at 50% AMI
20% of units at 50% AMI
Total Affordable Units (40% Required)

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

N/A - New Construction

lof2

N/A - Acq / Rehab

15



Compliance Report QTR 3

2022
Rainbow
Chaparral Village (Odessa) Cove Village (Copperas Cove) El Nido (El Paso)
100% of units at 60% AMI 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Total Affordable Units (100% Required) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

100% of units at 60% AMI
Total Affordable Units (100% Required)

100% of units at 60% AMI
Total Affordable Units (100% Required)

100% of units at 60% AMI
Total Affordable Units (100% Required)

100% of units at 60% AMI
Total Affordable Units (100% Required)

40% of units at 60% AMI
Total Affordable Units (40% Required)

40% of units at 60% AMI
Total Affordable Units (40% Required)

40% of units at 60% AMI
Total Affordable Units (40% Required)

Garden (Lubbock)

High Plains (Lubbock)

Jose Antonio Escajeda (El Paso)

100.0%
100.0%

Los Ebanos (Brownsville)

100.0%
100.0%

River Park (Lampasas

100.0%
100.0%

Peppertree (Fort Worth)

100.0%
100.0%

Salem Village (Victoria)

100.0%
100.0%

Sierra Vista (El Paso)

100.0%
100.0%

Spring Terrace (Amarillo)

100.0% 100.0% 100%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Win-Lin Village (Amarillo)
100.0%
100.0%
LIH Walnut Creek Austin LP | AHA! |Apartments of Las Palmas
Walnut Creek (Austin) AHA! At Briarcliff (Austin) Las Palmas Villa
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Envolve Community Mgmt

| Green Development Company |

Dallas Leased Housing

Fawn Ridge | Pine Terrace Riverstation
88.3% 46.1% 92.4%
88.3% 46.1% 92.4%

| THF Midland Leased Housing |Galveston 3916 Winnie St LH

Market TC Il, LP

Scharbauer Flats (Midland)

| Sandpiper (Galveston)

|Marketplace at Liberty Crossing (Wilmer

8.0%
N/A - New construction

N/A - Acq / Rehab

N/A - New construction

Notes: The Hamilton Valley portfolio consisting of 21 properties was removed from this report as they are no longer required to report quarterly. Scharbauer Flats is in the
lease-up phase and was 8.3% occupied with eligible households during this reporting period. The following properties have closed and are currently under construction or
rehab activities: W. Leo Daniels, Sandpiper, Gardens at Balch Springs, and Marketplace at Liberty Crossings.

20f2

16



Resident Services Report QTR 3- 2022

TSAHC - Quarterly Resident Services Summary

As of the 3rd Quarter Ending September 31, 2022
DALCOR

Pine Club (Beaumont)

Ridgewood (Huntsville)

Saddlewood Club (Bryan)

‘Number of Services

Required 6 6 6
Number of Services
Provided 1 11 1

Tealwood Club (Wichita Falls)

Willowgreen (Houston)

Woodglen Park | & Il (Dallas)

Number of Services

Required 6 6 6
Number of Services
Provided 1 ® B
AHA! Cesar Chavez Foundation GESC Texas Housing Foundation

AHAI At Briarcliff Apartments (Austin)

Aguila Oaks (San Antonio)

Rita Blanca (Dalhart)

Palladium Midland (Midland)

‘Number of Services

Required 5 year 6 5 6
Number of Services
Provided s 0 ! 1

Odyssey Properties

Mary Lee Foundation

Texas Housing Foundation

Texas Housing Foundation

Palladium Glenn Heights (Dallas)

Marshall Meadows (San Antonio)

The Willows (Austin)

Gateway Northwest

Number of Services

Required 6 5 6 6
Number of Services
Provided N 1 N B

Steele St. James Peoples

Steele St. James Peoples

Steele Brooks Manor

Steele Pythian Manor

Peoples El Shaddai (Dallas)

St James Manor (Dallas)

Brook Manor (West Columbia)

Pythian Manor (Dallas)

Number of Services
Required

12

12

6

12

Number of Services
Provided

a

6

14

6

LIH Walnut Creek Austin LP

DHI Woodside Associates, LLC

THF Midland Leased Housing

THF Midland Leased Housing

Walnut Creek (Austin)

Woodside Village (Palestine)

Flats

Ventura at Tradewinds (Midland)

‘Number of Services

Required 12 6 12 12
Number of Services
Provided 20 6 N/A - New Construction 20
White Rock EC Fawn Ridge Apartment Las Palmas EC Marshall LLC

White Rock Apts

Fawn Ridge Apartments

Las Palmas Villas

Marshall Apartments

Number of Services
Required

0

6

6

6

Number of Services
Provided

19

8

N/A- Acquisition/Rehab

10

LPM Pine Terrace LP.

Dallas Leased Housing Associates XI, LLP.

LRC Shady Oaks Manor, LLC

Pine Terrace Apartments Riverstation Shady Oaks Manor
Number of Services
Required 12 6 6
Number of Services
Provided N/A- Acquisition/Rehab 19 5
W Daniels Towners |, LP Galveston 3916 Winnie St LP Gardens at Balch Springs, LP. Market TC I, LP

W. Leo Daniels

Sandpiper Cove

Garden at Balch Springs

at Liberty Crossing

Number of Services

Required 12 12 12 12
N“'"b:,'o‘j f;""ces 3 N/A- Acquisition/Rehab N/A - New Construction N/A - New Construction

Rainbow Housing

Chaparral Village (Odessa)

Cove Village (Copperas Cove)

El Nido (EI Paso)

Garden Apartments (Lubbock)

‘Number of Services

Required 5 5 5 5
Number of Services
Provided 24 16 17 19
High Plains (Lubbock) Jose Antonio Escajeda (El Paso) Los Ebanos Peppertree (Fort Worth)
Number of Services
Required 5 s 5 5
Number of Services
Brovided 16 21 13 22

River Park (Lampasas)

Salem Village (Victoria)

Sierra Vista (El Paso)

Spring Terrace (Amarillo)

Number of Services

Required 5 5 5 5
Number of Services
Provided ® 2 ® 16

Win-Lin Village (Amarillo)

‘Number of Services
Required

5

Number of Services
Provided

15

Notes: The Hamilton Valley portfolio consisting of 21 properties was removed from this report as they are no longer required to report quarterly. The following properties did not meet their resident
service requirements and were issued a Notice of Non-Compliance: Peoples El Shaddai, Saint James Manor, Pythian Manor and Shady Oaks Manor. These properties are being closely monitored. The

following properties recently started offering services or are currently under construction or rehab activities:

Balch Springs, and Marketplace at Liberty Crossings.

as Palmas Villas, Scharbauer Flats, Pine Terrace, W. Leo Daniels, Sandpiper, Gardens at

1of1

17



July Resident Services
Number of| . Points
Property Type of Service Description Provider Attendees Datclickided Assigned
Aguila Oaks Apartments On-Site Library Use The library services were available to residents. Residents were able t{Cesar Chavez Foundation 8 7/1/2022 1
AHA! At Briarcliff Apartments [Information Session Myles Wallace from Peak Performers came to discuss job placement dPeak Performers 3 7/6/2022 1
Brooks Manor Resident Service Notary Community Manager 0 7/31/2022 1
Social Service Social Networking Community Manager 1 7/11/2022 1
Resident Service Community Garden Community Manager 3 7/19/2022 1
Resident Service Library Club Community Manager 0 7/31/2022 1
Chaparral Village Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 80 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 80 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 80 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 80 7/12/2022 1
Cove Village Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/12/2022 1
El Nido Apartments Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 104 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 104 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 104 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 104 7/12/2022 1
Fawn Ridge Apartments Owning own Business Woodforest Bank did a class to teach about if owning a business is a g|Woodforest Bank - Elizabeth 3 7/20/2022 1
Social Activity Puppet Show on how to treat each other with kindness and respect, bjWoodlands Community Church 30 7/23/2022 1
Garden Apartments Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 62 7/5/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 62 7/7/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 62 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Housing Learning Module: Ace Your Job Interview RHAC 62 7/12/2022 1
Gateway Northwest Personal Development Book Club self 4 7/14/2022 1
Financial Skills Financial Planning Self 0 7/21/2022 1
High Plains Apartments Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/12/2022 1
Jose Antonio Escajeda Apartm{Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 94 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 94 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 94 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 94 7/12/2022 1
Los Ebanos Apartments Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 65 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 65 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 65 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 65 7/12/2022 1
Marshall Apartments Family Services Family Services & Parenting Services We Can Now 3 7/5/2022 1
WBIN Black Women in Business - The COVID-19 Community Food Relief ProgBriana De'Seaniae 16 7/25/2022 1
Marshall Meadows Resident Services July 13, 2022 4pm-5pm Paletas by the Pool Community Event, Free M|Vesta 72 7/10/2022 2
Palladium Glenn Heights Business Center Computer Room for Resident use Cares Team / Office 2 7/1/2022 1
Exercise Room Fitness Center for Resident use Cares Team/Office 11 7/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Available to Residents in need every Friday Cares Team/Office 3 7/1/2022 1
Notary Notarize Legal Documents Cares Team/Office 0 7/1/2022 1
Palladium Midland Book Club/ Counseling SerfWe meet and watch a short video, journal and have a short discussion|Dr. Lavonda Johnson Lee 8 7/1/2022 1
Weekend Safety/ Trash ClajTeaching about how and what you can recycle. The benefits of recycl{Office Staff 6 7/7/2022 1
Food Pantry Residents can come in during office hours if they are in need of food, {Office Staff 5 7/11/2022 1
Crime Watch Meeting Discuss what has been going on in the property with the residents. all{Office Staff 5 7/14/2022 1
Peoples El Shaddai Children's services Free weekday Meals July 4-8 City Square 138 7/8/2022 1
Peppertree Acres Apartments |Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 148 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 148 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 148 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 148 7/21/2022 1

18




July Resident Services
Number of| . Points
Property Type of Service Description Provider Attend pateloued Assigned
Pine Club Fax/Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all applicants and residents Pine Club Staff 2 7/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all applicants and residents Tia Ayala 0 7/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free open pantry to all residents Pine Club Staff 1 7/1/2022 1
Pythian Manor Resident Service Food bank distribution North TX food bank 44 7/12/2022 1
Resident Service Government phone program event Elite Bertha Cloud 9 7/29/2022 1
Ridgewood Fax/Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all applicants and residents Ridgewood Staff 0 7/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all applicants and residents Ridiya Wright 0 7/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free open food pantry to all residents Ridgewood Staff 6 7/1/2022 1
Job Training Virtual Resume Workshop Ridgewood Staff 0 7/14/2022 1
Rita Blanca Library Library - 2/3 residents are allowed into office at a time to select a don|Marti Harris 3 7/1/2022 1
Lunch Program Lunch Program - Manager picks up lunch bags from Elementary schoo|Marti Harris 19 7/4/2022 1
River Park Village Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/12/2022 1
Riverstation Apartments Fitness & Exercise Class Everyday Exercise Activities 1st & 25th & 29th GNP 0 7/1/2022 1
Household Budgeting WorkMake a Budget GNP 0 7/6/2022 1
After School Program After School Program - done 7 days of the month. 6th, 11th, 13th, 18{GNP 74 7/6/2022 1
Adult Development Buying a Home on 8th, Career in Real Estate on 11th&22nd, Affordabl|GNP 0 7/8/2022 1
Saddlewood Club Fax/Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all applicants and residents Saddlewood Staff 2 7/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all applicants and residents Lee Ann Rodgers 2 7/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free food pantry to all residents Saddlewood Staff 11 7/1/2022 1
Education Project Unity Parenting Classes BV Project Unity 2 7/21/2022 1
Salem Village Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 105 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 105 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 105 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 105 7/12/2022 1
Saint James Manor Children's services Free weekday meals July 4-8 City Square 69 7/8/2022 1
Shady Oaks Adult Services Free Tablet or Phone for Seniors Tamika 0 7/8/2022 1
Sierra Vista Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 106 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 106 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 106 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 106 7/12/2022 1
Spring Terrace Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/5/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/7/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/12/2022 1
Tealwood Club Notary Provide free notary service to all applicants and residents Carly M 0 7/1/2022 1
Fax/Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all applicants and residents Tealwood Staff 1 7/1/2022 1
Book Club Book this month: Percy Jackson and the Olympians Tealwood Staff 2 7/8/2022 1
The Willows Community Safety Case Manager Provided Community Safety MLF 2 7/6/2022 1
Direct Support Other Case Manager Provided Direct Support MLF 8 7/6/2022 1
Employment Services/ ResqCase Manager provided Employment Services / Resources MLF 1 7/12/2022 1
Medicare / Medicaid Case Manager Provided Medicare/Medicaid Services MLF 4 7/15/2022 1
Senior Services Case Manager Provided Senior Services MLF 1 7/29/2022 1
Utilities Services Case Manager Provided Utilities Services MLF 3 7/14/2022 1
Ventura at Tradewinds Neighborhood Developmer|Mobile Library GNP 0 7/5/2022 1
Neighborhood DevelopmerCommunity Outreach Back to School GNP 0 7/6/2022 1
Parenting Class Stress: Risk and Resilience GNP 2 7/8/2022 1
Health & Nutrition Course |Eating Healthy on a budget GNP 2 7/21/2022 1
Walnut Creek Apartments Drug Awareness Workshop|Emotional Jumbling Towers Portfolio Resident Service 5 7/5/2022 1
Financial Planning/Credit |Credit Counseling Workshop Portfolio Resident Service 20 7/7/2022 1
Recreational Activity Social/Recreational Activity Portfolio Resident Service 19 7/7/2022 1
Arts and Crafts Arts and Crafts Portfolio Resident Service 8 7/12/2022 1
White Rock Apartments Education/Tutoring Education scholastic tutoring 365 Learn TV 18 7/31/2022 1
Library Assistant Provide books and magazines and adult coloring books to help relieve|White Rock Library Assistant 18 7/31/2022 1

19




July Resident Services
Number of| . Points
Property Type of Service Description Provider Attend pateloued Assigned
Parenting Parenting 365 Learn TV 9 7/31/2022 1
Business Center Business center available to residents during business hours White Rock Business Center 7 7/31/2022 1
Willow Green Fax/Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all applicants and residents WillowGreen Staff 8 7/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all applicants and residents Jackie Rodas 3 7/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free food pantry to all residents WillowGreen 0 7/1/2022 1
Fitness Walk every Tuesday in July + Zumba in July WillowGreen Staff 2 7/25/2022 1
Win-Lin Village Apartments  [Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/5/2022 1
Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow [RHAC 50 7/7/2022 1
Medical and Health Service|Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/11/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow |RHAC 50 7/12/2022 1
Woodglen Park | & Il Fax/Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all applicants and residents Woodglen Staff 10 7/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all applicants and residents Primera Sanchez 0 7/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free food pantry to all residents Woodglen Staff 2 7/1/2022 1
Woodside Village Food Hygiene Discussed the four C's of food safety Woodside Village 8 7/14/2022 1
First Aide Kits Discussed making first aid kits Woodside Village 18 7/21/2022 1

20




August Resident Services

Number of Date Points
Attendees | Provided | Assigned
Property Type of Service Description Provider

Aguila Oaks Apartments After School Program The Fall program has started as of August 29, 2022. So far 4 children have been enrolled. 4| 8/29/2022 2
On-Site Library Use The library services were available to residents. Residents were able to access the library to check out books. The 14| 8/1/2022 1

Parenting Classes The property is currently promoting Virtual Parenting Classes. No, enrollments as of yet. 0| 8/1/2022 1

Backpack Distribution The property held a Backpack event on August 6, 2022, from 1-3 pm. A total of 35 backpacks were given to stude 35| 8/6/2022 1

AHA! At Briarcliff Apartments|Notary Kristen Davis is available to notarize documents during regular business hour{ AHA! 0| 8/1/2022 1
Gratitude Ceremony We had a gratitude ceremony and meditation with our tenants and the comn|AHA! 11| 8/12/2022 1

Brooks Manor Resident Service Food box delivery (Food Pantry) Place of Grace 24| 8/21/2022 1
Notary Service Notary Services Community Manager 0| 8/31/2022 1

Resident Service Community Garden Club Community Manager 1| 8/5/2022 1

Health Service Walking Club Community Manager 0| 8/31/2022 1

Resident Service Library Book Club Community Manager 0| 8/31/2022 1

Chaparral Village Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 80| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 80| 8/2/2022 1

Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 80| 8/4/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 80| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 80| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 80| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Furniture Assistance Door of Hope Mission, Pemian Basi 1| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support Food Assistance Catholic Chariities, Permian Basin 1| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support Rent Assistance Renters Advantage, Texas Departm 3| 8/5/2022 1

Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advangtage, Reliant Energy 2| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support GED RHAC 1| 8/31/2022 1

Cove Village Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 50| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/22/2022 1

Transportation Services  [Bus Passes RHAC 1| 8/2/2022 1

Direct Support Rent Assistance First Baptist Church, Salvation Army 1| 8/16/2022 1

Direct Support Furniture Assistance This and That Thrift Store by The Rej 1| 8/2/2022 1

El Nido Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 104| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 104| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 104| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 104| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 104| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Internet Assistance Spectrum, Affordable Connectivity 1| 8/9/2022 1

Direct Support Voting Registration Assistance El Paso County Votes 2| 8/9/2022 1

Fawn Ridge Apartments Health, Nutrition & fitness|Better Health, Better Life Health Care Insurance Obama Care - Haris Jalal 3| 8/9/2022 1
Arts and Crafts Crafts, tutoring, after school First Baptist Church 13| 8/9/2022 1

Children Meals Local Agency bringing hot meals for the children Driven Force 100| 8/30/2022 1

Garden Apartments Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 62| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 62| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 62| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 62| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 62| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Neighborhood 2| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support Medical Transportation Assistance South Plains Association of Govern 1| 8/22/2022 1

Community Awareness Community Event- Popcorn Friday RHAC 7| 8/26/2022 1

Gateway Northwest Personal Development Book Club self 4| 8/14/2022 1
Financial Skills Financial Planning Self 0| 8/21/2022 1

High Plains Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 50| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Neighborhood 3| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support Food Assistance Lubbock Dream Center, Lubbock Im)| 3| 8/22/2022 1

Community Awareness Community Event- Pizza Party RHAC 8| 8/12/2022 1

Jose Antonio Escajeda Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 94| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 94| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 94| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 94| 8/15/2022 1

21




August Resident Services

Number of Date Points
Attendees | Provided | Assigned
Property Type of Service Description Provider

Community Awareness QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 94| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Food Assistance Borderland Rainbow Center, Kelly M 1| 8/15/2022 1

Direct Support Internet Assistance Spectrum, Affordable Connectivity 1| 8/15/2022 1

Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Hill Country Coi 1| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support Citizenship Preparation Program RHAC 1| 8/15/2022 1

Las Palmas Villas N/A Las Palmas is still under rehab and the clubhouse/social services room is not §N/A ol 8/1/2022 0
Los Ebanos Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 65| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 65| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 65| 8/8/2022 1

Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 65| 8/18/2022 1

Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 65| 8/29/2022 1

Marshall Apartments Family Services Parenting Classes Antony Jackson 7| 8/2/2022 1
Family Service GED Antony Jackson 1| 8/16/2002 1

Family Services Counseling Anthony Jackson 1| 8/30/2022 1

Community Food Program|Food Service Briana De'Seaniae Murphy 14| 8/22/2022 1

Marshall Meadows Resident Services Back to school celebration for all residents 08/06/2022 1pm-3pm food, drink{Vesta 83| 8/10/2022 1
Palladium Midland Book Club We meet and watch a short video, journal, and have a short discussion on pe|Dr. Lavonda Johnson Lee 5 8/5/2022 1
Food Pantry Residents can come during office hours if they are in need of food, toiletries, |Office Staff 3| 8/1/2022 1

Vehicle Maintenance Residents are shown how to change a tire and how to properly place jumper {Acey Tate 5| 8/9/2022 1

Microsoft Word Training |Held in the business center with an instructor and handouts. Ana Caraballo 3| 8/17/2022 1

Crime Watch Discuss what has been going on in the property with resident to offer sugges{Officer Malcom 3| 8/23/2022 1

Fitness Center How to properly use the fitness equipment and demonstration. Leydis Rico 6| 8/29/2022 1

Peoples El Shaddai Children's services School supply and back pack give away Peoples 150| 8/13/2022 1
Peppertree Acres Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 148| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 148| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 148| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 148| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 148| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Texas Utility Hef 1| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support Baby Items Assistance Gill Children's Services, NEXTSTEP 1| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support Food Assistance Funky Town Fridge, Meadowridge ( 3| 8/22/2022 1

Direct Support GED RHAC 1| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness Community Event- Back to School Event RHAC 11| 8/1/2022 1

Pine Club Valet Trash Provide valet trash service to all residents Pine Club Staff 232| 8/1/2022 1
Fax/Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants Pine Club Staff 0| 8/1/2022 1

Notary Provide free notary service to all residents and applicants Tia Ayala 0| 8/1/2022 1

Resident Social Back to School supplies - given to all children K-12 Pine Club Staff 100| 8/5/2022 1

Education Renters Insurance seminar Mrs. Steward 8| 8/18/2022 1

Pine Terrance Apartments N/A Residence were given flyers because property is currently under rehab N/A 0 0
Pythian Manor Resident Service Food Box Delievery North TX food bank 31| 8/9/2022 1
Health Service Benefit Managment Well Care 2| 8/29/2022 1

Ridgewood Valet Trash Service Provide valet trash to all residents Ridgewood Staff 232| 8/1/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy services to all residents and applicants Ridgewood Staff 0| 8/1/2022 1

Notary Provide free notary services to all residents and applicants Ridiya Wright 0| 8/1/2022 1

Rita Blanca Library Library - 2/3 residents allowed into office at a time to select a donated book. [Marti Harris 2| 8/3/2022 1
Diaper Pantry Diaper Pantry - Delivery of Diapers. Marti Harris 5| 8/23/2022 1

River Park Village Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 50| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Utility Assistance Texas Utility Help, St. Mary's Cathol 3| 8/22/2022 1

22




August Resident Services

Number of Date Points
Attendees | Provided | Assigned
Property Type of Service Description Provider

Riverstation Apartments After School Program After School Program 3rd, 8th, 10th, 15th, 17th, 22nd, 24th, 29th, and 31st. |GNP 37| 8/3/2022 2
Diabetes/Heart Disease Co|Diabetes & Prediabetes Fact Sheet 17th, GNP 17| 8/17/2022 1

Health Screening/Mobile I|Blood Pressure Checks GNP 0| 8/24/2022 1

Neighborhood Developme|Back to school meet and greet GNP 60| 8/20/2022 1

Saddlewood Club Valet Trash Service Provide residents with valet trash service one day week Saddlewood Staff 232| 8/1/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy services to all residents Saddlewood Staff 0| 8/1/2022 1

Notary Provide free notary services to all residents Lee Ann Rodgers 3| 8/1/2022 1

Food Pantry Provide free open food pantry to all residents Saddlewood Staff 8| 8/1/2022 1

Transportation Provide free bus tickets to all residents Saddlewood Staff 2| 8/1/2022 1

Saint James Manor Children's services Peaches and Pears afterschool program feeding 20-35 children per weekday. |Peaches and Pears 3| 8/19/2022 1
Resident Service Free cell phone and tablets Marrero Group 3| 8/23/2022 1

Resident Service Group Meeting Ways to prevent violence. Property 1| 8/4/2022 1

Salem Village Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 105| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 105| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 105| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 105| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 105| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Rent Assistance Renters Advantage, St. Vincent de P 1| 8/31/2022 1

Direct Support Dental Assistance Community Health Centers of Sout 1| 8/31/2022 1

Direct Support Food Assistance St. Vincent de Paul, Community Act 1| 8/31/2022 1

Direct Support Medical Assistance Texas Medical & Wellness Clinic, Cri 1| 8/31/2022 1

Community Awareness Community Event- Back to School Event RHAC 30| 8/8/2022 1

Shady Oaks Manor English Class English Class Cristina Rodriquez 6| 8/10/2022 1
Health Free cancer screening Connie Stevens - Moncrief Cancer | 11| 8/18/2022 1

Sierra Vista Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 106| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 106 8/2/2022 1

Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 106 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 106| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 106| 8/18/2022 1

Direct Support Food Assistance Montwood Church of Christ, The Sa| 1| 8/9/2022 1

Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Project Bravo, Ul 1| 8/31/2022 1

Direct Support Rent Assistance Renters Advantage, Texas Health ar] 1| 8/31/2022 1

Spring Terrace Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 50| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 50| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/15/2022 1

Community Awareness  |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing RHAC 50| 8/18/2022 1

Tealwood Club Fax/Copy Provide free fax & copy services to all residents & applicants Tealwood Staff 4| 8/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary services to all residents & applicants Carlotta Midred 2| 8/1/2022 1

Transportation Provide free bus tickets to all residents Tealwood Staff 2| 8/1/2022 1

Education Arts & Crafts Tealwood Staff 13| 8/19/2022 1

Health Chronic Disease Self Management Wichita Falls Public Health Departm 9| 8/11/2022 1

The Willows Community Safety Case Manager Reported elevator inoperable - it was in process of being work{MLF 1| 8/5/2022 1
Direct Support Other Filed an elder abuse case with CPS against her sister; gave me details in case [MLF 7| 8/1/2022 1

Employment Services / RedCompleted Ul benefit over the phone and submitted MLF 1| 8/1/2022 1

Medical/Health Services |Completed app for TX Benefits long-term car MLF 1| 8/2/2022 1

Senior Programs Inquiry about Meals on Wheels program for son Carlton MLF 1| 8/4/2022 1

Direct Support Other Discussed details of tenants in 105 cleaning for her and the paperwork MLF 3| 8/18/2022 1

Senior Programs MLF 15| 8/26/2022 1

Ventura at Tradewinds Operation Back to School [Back to School Bash GNP 11| 8/5/2022 1
Tax Prep Course Taxable and Nontaxable Income GNP 3| 8/8/2022 1

Heath & Nutrition Course |Making Healthy Eating Park of your lifestyle and Eating Healthy on a budget |GNP 8| 8/10/2022 1

Character Building Internet/Social Media Dangers: Digital Awareness GNP 14| 8/17/2022 1

Health Fair Mini Health Fair GNP 2| 8/22/2022 1

Social Services & Referrals |SNAP Resources and Assistance GNP 0| 8/29/2022 1

Fire Safety Class Microwave Safety GNP 14| 8/29/2022 1

23




August Resident Services

Number of Date Points
Attendees | Provided | Assigned
Property Type of Service Description Provider

Walnut Creek Apts Art and Craft Arts and Craft Portfolio Resident Service 8| 8/2/2022 1
Health and Nutritional CoulAnnual health fair Portfolio Resident Service 6| 8/2/2022 1

Health & Nutritional Eating Healthy on a budget Portfolio Resident Service 21| 8/4/2022 1

Drug Awareness WorkshogDrug Awareness Presentation Portfolio Resident Service 22| 8/4/2022 1

Operation Back to School |School Supply Distribution Portfolio Resident Service 22| 8/6/2022 1

Job skills/Training Finding Your Career Fit Portfolio Resident Service 8| 8/9/2022 1

Character Building Drug Prevention: Drugs and your life Portfolio Resident Service 8| 8/18/2022 1

Youth Program Youth Program Portfolio Resident Service 20| 8/18/2022 1

White Rock Apts Budgeting Money Matters 365 Learn TV 18| 8/31/2022 1
Environmental Education |Green living 365 Learn TV 6| 8/31/2022 1

Education/Tutoring Education Scholastic Tutoring 365 Learn TV 12| 8/31/2022 1

Health Health and Fitness 365 Learn TV 22| 8/31/2022 1

Library Assistant Provide books and magazines and adult coloring books to help relieve stress. |White Rock Library Assistant 9| 8/31/2022 1

Parenting Parenting 365 Learn TV 12| 8/31/2022 1

Business Center Business center available for residents during office hours White Rock Business Center 14| 8/31/2022 1

Willow Green Valet Trash Provide valet trash service to all residents WillowGreen Staff 336 8/1/2022 1
Fax/Copy Provide free fax & copy services to all residents & applicants WillowGreen Staff 13 8/1/2022 1

Notary Provide free notary services to all residents & applicants Jackie Rodas 2| 8/1/2022 1

Resident Social Back to School Breakfast WillowGreen Staff 4| 8/26/2022 1

Education/Work Setting up for Job interviews WillowGreen Staff 1| 8/10/2022 1

Education After School Tutoring Cy-Fair ISD 20| 8/1/2022 2

Win-Lin Village Apartments [Medical and Health Servic§Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow Housing RHAC 50| 8/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/2/2022 1

Career Services QOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousingRHAC 50| 8/8/2022 1

Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 50| 8/15/2022 1

Medical and Health ServicdOutreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousindRHAC 50| 9/29/2022 1

Community Awareness Community Event- Backpack Drive Southwest Church of Christ 3| 8/1/2022 1

Woodglen Park | & II Valet Trash Service Provide valet trash service to all residents Woodglen Staff 232| 8/1/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all applicants and residents Woodglen Staff 11| 8/1/2022 1

Notary Provide free notary service to all applicants and residents Primera Sanchez 3| 8/1/2022 1

Transportation Free bus passes available to all residents Woodglen Staff 1| 8/1/2022 1

Nutrition Summer Lunch Program - everyday M-F Woodglen Staff 17| 8/1/2022 1

Woodside Village Recommended Vaccinatiof We had a Back to School Bash with lunch served and presentation for recomrlWoodside Village 17| 8/5/2022 1
Addiction and Treatment (We did arts and crafts and did a presentation of Addiction and Treatment Op{Woodside Village 3| 8/19/2022 1

24




September Resident Services

Number of Date Points
Property Type of Service Description Provider At | Provided | Assigned
Aguila Oaks Apartments After School Program The Fall program is in session Monday through Thursday, 4 children have en|Aguila Oaks 4| 9/30/2022 2
On-Site Library Use The library services were available to residents. Residents were able to acce{Aguila Oaks 16 9/1/2022 1
Health and Nutrition Class|Virtual health and nutrition classes are being offered and shared with reside|Aguila Oaks 0| 9/30/2022 1
AHA! At Briarcliff Apartments|Notary Kristen Davis is available to notarize documents AHA 1 9/1/2022 1
Library Community Room - there is a library and will be computers available for clie| AHA 3 9/1/2022 1
Brooks Manor Resident Service Notary Community Manager 0 9/1/2022 1
Resident Service Place of Grace Food Pantry Box Delivery Place of Grace 22| 9/15/2022 1
Resident Service Community Garden Community Manager 0| 8/31/2022 1
Resident Service Library Book Club Community Manager 0| 8/31/2022 1
Resident Service Walking Club Community Manager 0| 8/31/2022 1
Chaparral Village Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 80 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 80 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 80 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 80| 9/12/2022 1
Direct Support Furniture Assistance Door of Hope Mission, Pemian Basin 1 9/8/2022 1
Direct Support Childcare Assistance Family Promise of Odessa, Inc., Great: 1 9/2/2022 1
Direct Support Clothing Assistance Permian Basin Mission, Salvation Arm| 1 9/8/2022 1
Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Reliant Energy, P 1 9/8/2022 1
Direct Support GED Program RHAC 1 9/7/2022 1
Cove Village Community Awareness  [Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 50 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 50 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 50( 9/12/2022 1
Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Reliant Energy, B 1 9/9/2022 1
El Nido Apartments Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 104 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 104 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 104 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 104| 9/12/2022 1
Direct Support Food Assistance Borderland Rainbow Center, Kelly Me] 2| 9/21/2022 1
Direct Support Medical Assistance Revive Healthcare, Centro De Salud F 1| 9/21/2022 1
Fawn Ridge Apartments Food Drive Hot meals for families with Kids Driven Force with Purpose 100 9/6/2022 1
Home Buyers Education [Financial Education class - buying a home Woodforest Bank - Derek 4] 9/20/2022 1
Fire Prevention NNO- National Night Out with Fire Department Education on Fire Preventiof The Woodlands Township - Susan 50| 9/27/2022 1
Garden Apartments Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 62 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 62 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 62 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 62| 9/12/2022 1
Direct Support Rent Assistance Renters Advantage, Neighborhood H( 1 9/9/2022 1
Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Neighborhood Hd 2 9/9/2022 1
Direct Support Job Search Assistance Rainbow, Workforce Solutions, Good 1 9/9/2022 1
Gateway Northwest Personal Development Book Club Self 2| 9/13/2022
Personal Development Counseling Self 0| 9/20/2022
High Plains Apartments Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 50 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/12/2022 1
Jose Antonio Escajeda Apartm{Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 65 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 65 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 65 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 65| 9/12/2022 1
Las Palmas Villas N/A Resident Services start 10.2022 0 9/1/2022 0
Los Ebanos Apartments Community Awareness  |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 94 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 94 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 94 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 94| 9/12/2022 1
Direct Support Medical Assistance Centro De Salud Familiar La Fe, Inc., 1| 9/30/2022 1
Direct Support Food Assistance Borderland Rainbow Center, Kelly Me] 1| 9/30/2022 1
Direct Support Internet Assistance Spectrum, Affordable Connectivity Pr 1| 9/22/2022 1
Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Hill Country Com 2| 9/30/2022 1
Marshall Apartments Family Services GED Anthony Jackson 4| 9/13/2022 1
Food Services Covid-19 Community Food Program Briana De'Seaniae Murphy 10[ 9/19/2022 1
Tutoring Tutoring Jessica Post 7| 9/26/2022 1
Mentoring Big Fish Club Jessica Post 18| 9/29/2022 1
Marshall Meadows Resident Services Back to School 2nd give away 9/7/22 4pm-5:30pm, Meet & Greet new Vesta 42| 10/7/2022 3

25




September Resident Services

Number of Date Points
Property Type of Service Description Provider At | Provided | Assigned
Palladium Glenn Heights Food Pantry Available to Residents in Need, every Friday Cares Team/Office 2 9/1/2022 1
Notary Service Notarize Legal Documents Cares Team/Office 0 9/1/2002 1
Homework Hour Assist Children with Homework as needed Cares Team 0 9/1/2022 1
Tutoring Tutor Child 10N1 in Specific Topic Cares Team 0 9/1/2022 1
Crime Watch Meeting Provide Residents with Local Crime Stats in the Area Courtesy Officer/Manager/Cares Tea 20 9/1/2022 1
Palladium Midland Book Club We meet and watch a short video, journal, and have a short discussion on pqDr. Lavonda Johnson Lee 5 9/2/2022 1
Food Pantry Residents can come during office hours if they are in need of food, toiletries|Office Staff 3 9/5/2022 1
Time Management Class [Making a to do list (copies of A To do List) then different monthly calendar |Ana Faith Caraballo 4 9/6/2022 1
Crime Watch S.5.5.S Information ( See Something Say Something ) Officer Malcom Mcpherson 6| 9/14/2022 1
Microsoft Word Training [Held in the business center with an instructor and handouts. Mr. Scurlark 4| 9/22/2022 1
Health Eating and ExerciseInstructor giving out recipes on healthy meal options and hand out on chair |Leydis Rico 5| 9/28/2022 1
Peoples El Shaddai Youth Services After School Meal Program. Serves 20-30 children Daily Monday - Friday all 1Peaches and Pears 30 9/1/2022 2
Peppertree Acres Apartments|Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 148 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 148 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 148 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 148 9/12/2022 1
Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Texas Utility Help| 4| 9/14/2022 1
Direct Support Internet Assistance Spectrum, Stand up Wireless, TruCon 1| 9/14/2022 1
Direct Support Food Assistance Funky Town Fridge, Meadow ridge Cq 1| 9/14/2022 1
Direct Support GED RHAC 1| 9/14/2022 1
Pine Club Valet Trash Service Provide valet trash service to all residents Pine Club Staff 232 9/1/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants Pine Club Staff 0 9/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all residents and applicants Tia Ayala 4 9/1/2022 1
Pine Terrance Apartments N/A Community Room under construction Pine Terrace 0 9/1/2022 0
Pythian Manor Resident Service Free cell phones Wright Care Benefits & Marreo Grouy 6| 9/29/2022 1
Resident Service Food Bank Delivery North Texas Bank 0| 9/30/2022 1
Ridgewood Valet Trash Service Provide valet trash service to all residents Ridgewood Staff 232 9/1/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants Ridgewood Staff 0 9/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all residents and applicants Ridya Wright 0 9/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free open food pantry to all residents Ridgewood Staff 4 9/1/2022 1
Rita Blanca Library Library- 2/3 residents are allowed into office at a time to select a donated b{Marti Harris 3 9/1/2022 1
Hygiene Pantry Hygiene Pantry- no contact delivery of hygiene products. Marti Harris 28 9/6/2022 1
Diaper Pantry Diaper Pantry- No contact delivery of diapers. Marti Harris 5| 9/19/2022 1
River Park Village Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 50 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50| 9/12/2022 1
Direct Support Utility Assistance Texas Utility Help, St. Mary's Catholic 1| 9/15/2022 1
Riverstation Apartments English as a Second LangudClothes worksheet x2 7th and 12th GNP 0 9/7/2022 1
Household Budgeting Wor{Make a Budget GNP 0 9/7/2022 1
After school Program After School Program 7th, 12th, 14th, 19th, 21st, 23rd, 26th, 28th GNP 86 9/7/2022 1
Adult Development Buying a Home GNP 0 9/9/2022 1
Adult Development Senior Chair Fitness GNP ol 9/10/2022 1
Adult Development Career in Real Estate GNP ol 9/12/2022 1
Parenting & Nutrition Health Meals with less sugars GNP 0| 9/14/2022 1
Social Service Agencies Health & Human Services x2 16th & 30th GNP o[ 9/16/2022 1
Family Development Smart Money Moves x2 17th & 24th GNP 0| 9/17/2022 1
Computer Lab/Training  [Copying and Moving a File GNP 0| 9/26/2022 1
Job Training Finding a Career Fit GNP o[ 9/26/2022 1
Crisis/Family Counseling [Self Care Wheel GNP o[ 9/28/2022 1
Fire Safety Class Home Hazards GNP 0| 9/28/2022 1
Saddlewood Club Valet Trash Service Provide free valet trash service to all residents Saddlewood Staff 232 9/1/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants Saddlewood Staff 2 9/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all residents and applicants Lee Ann Rodgers 0 9/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free open food pantry to all residents Saddlewood Staff 13 9/1/2022 1
Transportation Provide free bus tickets to all residents Saddlewood Staff 2 9/1/2022 1
Salem Village Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 105 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 105 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 105 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 105 9/12/2022 1
Direct Services Medical Assistance Texas Medical & Wellness Clinic, Cros 1| 9/30/2022 1
Children Services Tutoring Mid-Coast Family Services 10| 9/12/2022 1

26




September Resident Services

Number of Date Points
Property Type of Service Description Provider At | Provided | Assigned
Saint James Manor Youth Services Afterschool Meal Program. Feeding 25-30 children a day Monday - Friday all|Peaches and Pears 25 9/1/2022 2
Shady Oaks Manor Fitness Fitness with David David Thompson 0 9/8/2022 1
Renters Insurance Amax Insurance Company - How to save on renters insurance Lucy Diaz 4]  9/20/2022 1
Sierra Vista Community Awareness  [Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 106 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 106 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 106 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 106 9/12/2022 1
Spring Terrace Community Awareness |Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 50 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 50 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousifRHAC 50| 9/12/2022 1
Direct Support Credit Counseling Renters Advantage, Money Managen| 1| 9/23/2022 1
Direct Support Food Assistance Washington Ave Christian Church, Ac 1| 9/30/2022 1
Direct Support Utility Assistance Renters Advantage, Amarillo Westley 1| 9/30/2022 1
Tealwood Club Resident Social Resident Bingo Tealwood Staff 10 9/2/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants Tealwood Staff 5 9/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free notary service to all residents and applicants Renatta Graham 4 9/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free and open food pantry to all residents Tealwood 0 9/1/2022 1
Book Club Monthly Book club meeting Tealwood Staff 4 9/23/2022 1
Transportation Free bus tickets to all residents Tealwood Staff 2 9/1/2022 1
The Village Apartments Transportation Free bus tickets to all residents Tealwood Staff 2 9/1/2022 1
Book Club Offered weekly to residents to discuss the book they are reading Hamilton Valley Management 7 6/7/2022 1
Exercise Class Offered weekly to residents Texercise 15 6/8/2022 1
On site Library Free and available to all residents during business hours. Hamilton Valley Management 3 6/1/2022 1
Health Screening Dr. Conley (the Foot Doctor) comes and does health screenings on the resid{Foot Doctor 14 6/1/2022 1
The Willows Direct Support Case Worker Provided Direct Support: MLF 6 9/1/2022 1
Direct Support Case Manager Provided Direct Support: MLF 13 9/2/2022 1
Direct Support Case Manager Provided Direct Support: MLF 11 9/6/2022 1
Employment Services/Res{Case Manager Provided Employment Services/Resources: MLF 1| 9/22/2022 1
Employment Services/Res{Case Manger Provided Employment Services/Resources: MLF 1| 9/23/2022 1
Employment Services/Res{Case Manager Provided Employment Services/Resources: MLF 1| 9/30/2022 1
Ventura at Tradewinds Health & Nutrition Course|To your Health - Food Safety for Seniors GNP 2( 9/12/2022 1
Fitness & Exercise Class |Endurance Exercises GNP 2| 9/16/2022 1
Parenting Class Stress: Risk and Resilience GNP 1| 9/19/2022 1
Tax Prep Course Income Tax Preparation GNP 0| 9/19/2022 1
Fire Safety Class Calling 911 GNP 1| 9/19/2022 1
Social Services Referrals |Food Boxes GNP 6| 9/22/2022 1
Health Fair Health Information Seminar GNP 1| 9/23/2022 1
Youth Program Self Esteem Journal GNP o[ 9/26/2022 1
Character Building Drug Prevention: Drugs & Your Life It isn't pretty GNP 0| 9/26/2022 1
W Leo Daniels Phone Service Phone Services for the Elderly Caption Call 16| 9/20/2022 1
Chip Congregate Service Program- Monday Through Friday W Leo Daniels 10| 9/26/2022 1
Case Management Assist tenants with needs Kathy/ W Leo Daniels 8| 9/30/2022 1
Walnut Creek Apartments Health Fair Mini Health Fair Portfolio Resident Service 6 9/6/2022 1
Financial Planning The Cost of College-Financing Your Education Portfolio Resident Service 6 9/6/2022 1
Health & Nutritional Making Healthy Eating : Part of your lifestyle Portfolio Resident Service 7 9/8/2022 1
Drug Awareness WorkshofMeena's Mistake Portfolio Resident Service 18 9/8/2022 1
Job Skills/Training Interview Follow Up Portfolio Resident Service 5| 9/13/2022 1
Parenting Class Motivation Portfolio Resident Service 5| 9/13/2022 1
Fitness & Exercise Class [Walking Exercise Plan Portfolio Resident Service 13| 9/15/2022 1
Character Building Antibullying: Say Not to Bullying Portfolio Resident Service 4| 9/22/2022 1
White Rock Apartments Budgeting Money matters 365 Learn TV 9 9/30/2022 1
Education/Tutoring Education scholastic tutoring 365 Learn TV 17| 9/30/2022 1
Health Health and fitness 365 Learn TV 17| 9/30/2022 1
Technology Technology 365 Learn TV 7| 9/30/2022 1
Travel Travel 365 Learn TV 9 9/30/2022 1
Library Assistant Provide books and magazines and adult coloring books to help relieve stress|White Rock Library Assistant 11 9/30/2022 1
Parenting Parenting 365 Learn TV 9| 9/30/2022 1
Business Center Business center available during business hours White Rock Business Center 14| 9/30/2022 1
Willow Green Valet Trash Service Provide free valet trash service to all residents WillowGreen Staff 336 9/1/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants WillowGreen Staff 11 9/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants Jackie Rodas 0 9/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free fax and copy service to all residents WillowGreen Staff 3 9/1/2022 1
Fitness Fitness Wal WillowGreen Staff 1| 9/13/2022 1
Education After School Tutoring CyFair ISD 25 9/1/2022 1
Win-Lin Village Apartments |Community Awareness [Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/1/2022 1
Financial Skills Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/6/2022 1
Medical and Health Servic{Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50 9/8/2022 1
Career Services Outreach - Online Resident Training - Webinar presented by Rainbow HousilRHAC 50| 9/12/2022 1
Direct Services Rent Assistance Renters Advantage, Salvation Army, 1 9/7/2022 1

27




September Resident Services

Number of Date Points
Property Type of Service Description Provider At | Provided | Assigned
Woodglen Park | & II Valet Trash Service Provide free valet trash service to all residents Woodglen Staff 232 9/1/2022 1
Fax/ Copy Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants Woodglen Staff 0 9/1/2022 1
Notary Provide free fax and copy service to all residents and applicants Primera Sanchez 1 9/1/2022 1
Food Pantry Provide free fax and copy service to all residents Woodglen 0 9/1/2022 1
Transportation Free bus passes for all residents Woodglen Staff 4 9/1/2022 1
Woodside Village Suicide Prevention We served breakfast before school and handed out information and spoke dWoodside Village 11 9/8/2022 1
Healthy vs Unhealthy Rela|We did arts and crafts and a presentation on healthy vs unhealthy relationsfWoodside Village 4] 9/22/2022 1

28




Tab D
Quarterly Fundraising Report

29



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
2022 Quarterly Fundraising Report

November 28, 2022

2022/2023 Homeownership and Home Buyer Education Initiatives

Funder Amount Status Notes
Received between July 2021 and November 2022 to support the 2022 Housing Connection workshops for housing
Individual Donations $26,034 |Received counselors
PNC $20,000 |Awarded Requested in September 2022 to support the 2023 Housing Connection workshops for housing counselors
Texas Community Bank $10,000 |Pending Requested in November 2022 to support 2023 Housing Connection workshops
Received in April 2022 to support efforts to increase homeownership among households of color in the Houston
Wells Fargo/Local Initiatives Support Corporation $10,000 |Received metro area
Awarded in November 2022 to support the research of a mortgage assistance pilot program and to support
Wells Fargo/Local Initiatives Support Corporation $195,148 |Awarded collaborative efforts to increase homeownership among BIPOC households in the Houston area
In discussions to support mortgage assistance program aimed at increasing homeownership among BIPOC
Wells Fargo/Local Initiatives Support Corporation $1,000,000 |Discussion households in the Houston area
Total Awarded/Received | $251,182 |
|Tota| Requests Pending/Under Discussion | $1,010,000 |
| 2022 Permanent Supportive Housing Institute
JPMorgan Chase $10,000 |Received Initially awarded for 2021 Institute, but reallocated to 2022 Institute due to fundraising surplus
Texas Capital Bank $50,000 |Received Received in April 2022 to support 2022 PSH Institute
Insperity $5,000 |Received Received in April 2022 to support 2022 PSH Institute
Frost Bank $5,000 |Received Received in April 2022 to support 2022 PSH Institute
JPMorgan Chase $30,000 |Received Received in July 2022 to support 2022 PSH Institute
Dominium $10,000 |Received Received in August 2022 to support 2022 PSH Institute
Regions Bank $5,000 |Received Received in August 2022 to support 2022 PSH Institute
Bank of America $22,000 |Received Received in October 2022 to support 2022 PSH Institute
City of Austin $55,000 |Pending Requested in July 2022 to support 2022 PSH Institute
Total Awarded/Received | $137,000
Total Requests Pending | $55,000

TSAHC Grant Making Programs (Texas Foundations Fund, new TxDOT Initiative)

Funder Amount Status Notes
Entered discussions in October 2020 to administer grant funding to support affordable housing initiatives in
Houston neighborhoods affected by I-45 expansion project. A portion of funds may be used for Texas Housing
Impact Fund and Affordable Communities of Texas (ACT) programs as well. TSAHC is currently awaiting a contract
Texas Department of Transportation $27,000,000 [Discussion from TxDOT to move forward and was notified in March 2022 that the contract process is still on hold.

30




Total Requests Pending/Under Discussion

$27,000,000

Texas Housing Impact Fund

Funder Amount Status Notes

A community development loan initially awarded to fund down payment assistance for TSAHC's home buyer

programs. In December 2018, Frost Bank granted TSAHC an extension and expanded the loan purpose to include
Frost Bank $4,000,000 |Received the Texas Housing Impact Fund.

Awarded in February 2019 to support rental housing developments financed through the Texas Housing Impact
Capital Magnet Fund $3,750,000 |Received Fund
Money Follows the Person (Texas Health and Human Funds will support the construction or rehabilitation of rental units for individuals eligible for Medicare Long Term
Services Program) $2,458,736 |Received Services and Supports
Sisters of Charity of the Incarnate Word $250,000 |Received Program Related Investment received in January 2021 to support Texas Housing Impact Fund

Awarded in September 2021 support affordable housing projects financed by TSAHC's Texas Housing Impact Fund
Austin Community Foundation $250,000 |Partially Received in Central Texas

Awarded in September 2022 to support TSAHC's Affordable Housing Program (AHP) deferred forgivable loan to the
Wells Fargo $45,000 |Received Cady Lofts development
Total Received/Awarded $10,753,736

Affordable Communities of Texas (ACT) Program

Funder Amount Status Notes

Texas Community Bank approved a 5 year renewal of TSAHC's EQ2 investment, extending the term from May 2020
Texas Community Bank $500,000 |Received to May 2025
Total Received $500,000

Summary

Total Received/Awarded | $11,641,918
Total Pending/Under Discussion | $28,065,000

31




Tab E
Monthly Financial Reports

32



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Net Position (unaudited)
As of October 31, 2022

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,475,672
Pooled investments 10,802,890
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,870,017
Accrued interest 22,744
Investments, at fair value 6,668,948
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 252,951
Accrued interest receivable 260,249
Loans receivable, current portion 72,549
Notes receivable, current portion 26,782,157
Downpayment assistance, current portion 343,492
Prepaid expenses 351,625
Total current assets 53,903,294

Noncurrent assets:

Loans receivable, Net of uncollectible amounts of $9,395 193,957
Notes receivable, net of allowance for loss $317,905 208,695,656
Lease Receivable 120,524
Investments, at fair market value 34,601,121
Mortgage servicing rights, net of accumulated amortization of $2,629,706 98,355
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $874,764 5,770,239
Owned real estate, net of amortization of $1,900,937 13,960,484
Downpayment assistance 126,104
Restricted investments held by bond trustee, at fair market value 17,463,465
Total noncurrent assets 281,029,905
Total assets $ 334,933,199

(continued)

33



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Net Position (unaudited)
As of October 31, 2022

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Notes payable, current portion

Custodial reserve funds

Other current liabilities

Payable from restricted assets held by bond trustee:
Revenue bonds payable, current portion
Accrued interest on revenue bonds

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable
Revenue bonds payable
Unearned revenue

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

$ 460,701
64,620

246,306
255,181

385,000
112,092

1,523,900

2,059,589
17,668,802
1,569,359

21,297,750

22,821,650

348,607

348,607

5,770,239

623,754
4,789,749
300,579,200

311,762,942

$ 334,933,199

34



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (unaudited)

For the 2 Months Ending October 31, 2022

Operating Revenues:

Interest and investment income

Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments

Single family income

Asset oversight and compliance fees

Rental program income

Multifamily income

Land bank income

Public support:
Federal & state grants
Contributions

Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Interest expense on bonds and notes payable
Program and loan administration
Texas Foundation Fund & Misc Grants
Salaries, wages and payroll related costs
Professional fees and services
Depreciation and amortization
Office expense and maintenance
Travel and meals
Other operating expenses

Total operating expenses

Net income
Total net position, beginning

Total net position, ending

$ 353,700
(1,269,434)
10,039,958

59,750
157,400
185,288

2,792

2,741
22,535
7,965

$ 9,562,695

$ 103,443
13,832

952,359

47,303

125,647

21,827

15,109

94,116

1,373,636

8,189,059
303,573,883

$ 311,762,942

35



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Budget Report
October 31, 2022
Percent of
Annual Annual
Budget Actual Budget Reference

Revenue
Single Family Program Revenue 8,653,000 2,151,667 25% @
Lending Program Revenue 5,645,000 2,194,893 39% @)
Multifamily Program Revenue 1,055,000 140,930 13%
Rental Program Revenue 918,000 153,820 17%
Federal & State Grants 1,500,000 - 0%
Grants, Donations & Other Awards 260,000 67,535 26%
Land Bank Revenue 601,000 3,028 1%
Servicing Revenue 98,000 13,334 14%
Investment Revenue 1,580,000 347,492 22%

Total Revenue 20,310,000 5,072,699 25%
Expenditures
Texas Housing Impact Fund 6,575,000 240,242 4%
Affordable Communities of Texas 3,100,000 238,663 8%
Other Program Expenditures 3,439,000 688,663 20%
Salaries & Payroll Related Expenditures 4,400,000 952,359 22%
Grants 1,115,000 14,934 1%
Principal & Interest on Notes Payable 136,000 20,387 15%
Professional Services 605,000 47,303 8%
Marketing 159,000 16,883 11%
Insurance 260,000 35,218 14%
Travel & Meals 99,000 15,109 15%
Furniture, Equipment, & Software 49,000 13,603 28% ®
Building Maintenance 70,000 9,131 13%
Professional Dues, Conferences & Train 34,000 6,694 20%
Sponsorships 24,000 2,500 10%
Communication 27,000 4,340 16%
Bank Fees & Charges 22,000 4,166 19%
Publications, Subscriptions & Office Ex 26,000 4,354 17%
Freight, Delivery, Postage 12,000 1,950 16%
Printing & Office Supplies 5,000 603 12%

Total Expenditures 20,157,000 2,317,102 11%
Excess Revenues Over Expenditures 153,000 2,755,597 1801%

Average Expected Percent Received/Expended = 16.67%

36



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
Budget Report
October 31, 2022

Explanations

©)

Second lien down payment assistance loans are paying off more rapidly than
expected resulting in more Single Family Program Revenue than anticipated.

Lending Program Revenue is higher than expected because two loans in the
amount of $1 million each paid off during October 2022. We anticipate that
this line item will be on target by year end.

Expenditures for furniture and equipment are higher than anticipated because
approximately $4000 to upgrade the sound system in the board room was
expended during the first two months of the fiscal year. These costs were
anticipated and we expect this line item will be on target by year end.

37



Tab 1

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board
Meeting held on October 18, 2022.

38



TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
BOARD MEETING

The Governing Board of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (TSAHC)

October 18, 2022
10:30 a.m.

Summary of Minutes

Call to Order
Roll Call
Certification of Quorum

The Board Meeting of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation’) was
called to order by Bill Dietz, Chair, at 10:31 a.m., on October 18, 2022, at the offices of Texas State
Affordable Housing Corporation, 6701 Shirley Avenue, Austin, TX 78752. Roll Call certified that
a quorum was present.

Members Present:

Bill Dietz, Chair

Valerie Cardenas, Vice Chair
Courtney Johnson-Rose, member

Guests Present:
Chris Spelbring, Raymond James and Associates
Routt Thornhill, Coats Rose

President’s Report David Long, President

Tab 1 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of Minutes of the Board Meeting
held on September 27, 2022.

Ms. Cardenas made a motion to approve the minutes of the Board meeting held September 27, 2022.

Ms. Rose seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was

taken, and the motion passed unanimously.

See page 11 in the official transcript.

Tab 2 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the
Development of a Program and the Preparation of Documents Relating to the

Issuance and Sale of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds and Containing Other
Matters Incident and Related Thereto.

39



Presented by Joniel LeVecque, Senior Director of Single Family Programs and Chris Spelbring,
Raymond James and Associates

Ms. Rose made a motion to approve the Resolution Authorizing the Development of a Program and the

Preparation of Documents Relating to the Issuance and Sale of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds

and Containing Other Matters Incident and Related Thereto. Ms. Cardenas seconded the motion. Mr.

Dietz asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was taken. The motion passed with two

votes in favor and one abstention.

See page 12 in the official transcript.

Tab 3 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution to Approve the
Corporation’s Fiscal Year 2023 Investment Policy.

Presented by Melinda Smith, Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Rose made a motion to approve the Resolution to Approve the Corporation’s Fiscal Year 2023

Investment Policy. Ms. Cardenas seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz asked for public comment and none

was given. A vote was taken, and the motion passed unanimously.

See page 18 in the official transcript.

Tab 4 Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Corporation’s Fiscal Year

2023 Broker Listing.

Presented by Melinda Smith, Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Cardenas made a motion to approve the Corporation’s Fiscal Year 2023 Broker Listing.

Ms. Rose seconded the motion. Mr. Dietz asked for public comment and none was given. A vote was

taken. The motion passed with two votes in favor and one abstention.

See page 21 in the official transcript.

Tab 5 Presentation and Discussion of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s
Fiscal Year 2022 and 2023 Strategic Plans.

Presented by Janie Taylor, Executive Vice President; Sarah Ellinor, Senior Manager, Homeownership
Programs; Joniel LeVecque, Senior Director of Single Family Programs; Katie Claflin, Senior Director,
Communications & Development

No action taken.

See page 25 in the official transcript.

40



Announcements and Closing Comments

Mr. Long and Board Members tentatively scheduled the next Board Meeting for November 15, 2022,
at 10:30 am.

Adjournment
Mr. Dietz adjourned the meeting at 11:26 pm.

Respectfully submitted by
Cynthia Gonzales, Assistant Corporate Secretary

41



Tab 2

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of the Fiscal Year 2022
Annual Independent Financial and Single Audit Reports.

42



Texas State Affordable Housing
Corporation

Financial Statements
and Supplemental Information
as of and for the Year Ended

August 31, 2022 and
Independent Auditors’ Report

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 43



Independent Auditors’ Report

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 44



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Table of Contents

Independent Auditors’ Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Financial Statements

Other Supplemental Information-

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses by Activity

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required
by The Uniform Guidance and State of Texas Uniform
Grant Management Standards

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution.

13-14
15

16-17
18-38

39

40-41

42-44

45

46

47-48

45



Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors of
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Texas
State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation™) as of and for the year ended August 31, 2022,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Corporation, as of August 31, 2022,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 46



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation’s ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 47



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 11 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal and state awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the
State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the schedule of revenues and expenses by activity but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements does
not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

I, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 48



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 6,
2022 on our consideration of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Austin, Texas

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 49



Management’s
Discussion and Analysis

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 50



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2022

This discussion and analysis of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s (the “Corporation™)
financial performance provides an overview of the Corporation’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended August 31, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the basic financial statements and the
accompanying notes to those financial statements.

Financial Highlights

e At August 31, 2022 the Corporation’s total assets equaled $327.9 million; of this
amount $20.6 million represents assets associated with the single-family bond program;
$52.9 million represents unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and investments; $229.2 million
consists of loans and notes receivable; and $13.1 million represents real estate held under
the Affordable Communities of Texas (“ACT”) Program and the Rental Program. Total
assets increased approximately $74.8 million during 2022 primarily due to the increase in
notes receivable associated with the Texas Housing Impact Fund Program.

e The Corporation’s liabilities totaled $24.0 million of which $19.1 million relates to the
single-family bond program and $2.1 million consists of notes payable. Total liabilities
decreased approximately $23.7 million in 2022 resulting primarily from the redemption of
the Corporation’s single-family bond debt.

o At the close of the fiscal year ending August 31, 2022 the Corporation’s assets exceeded
its liabilities by $303.6 million. Of this amount, $292.0 million may be used to meet the
Corporation’s ongoing obligations to the public and creditors, $5.8 million is restricted and
$5.8 million is invested in capital assets.

e The Corporation’s operating revenues for 2022 totaled $107.6 million and operating
revenues exceeded operating expenses by approximately $98.3 million. The major
revenue sources were single family program income equaling $106.2 million, interest and
investment income totaling $2.0 million, and grants/contributions of $1.5 million. Revenue
decreased in 2022 by approximately $23.3 million due to a decrease in income from Single
Family programs. The Corporation follows the provisions of GASB Statements No. 31 and
72, which require that certain types of investments be reported at fair value on the balance
sheet.

e Operating expenditures for fiscal year 2022 consist primarily of salary expense of
$4.6 million, Texas Foundations Fund Grants of $2.0 million, and depreciation and
amortization of $0.8 million.

e The Corporation created three separate entities in April 2022 associated with a project to
be developed beginning in 2023 with the purpose of developing affordable housing.
The names of these entities are Plano-DMA TSAHC Housing, LLC, TSAHC Park on
14th, LLC, and TSAHC MF-GC, LLC. There was no activity related to these new entities
as of August 31, 2022.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 51

5



Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the Corporation as prescribed by
GASB Statement No. 34.

The Corporation operates as a single enterprise fund; therefore the basic financial statements presented
are the Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and
the Statement of Cash Flows. As with all proprietary funds, the financials are presented using the
economic resources measurement focus.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
report information about the Corporation as a whole. These statements include a// assets, liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources of the Corporation using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar
to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
report the Corporation’s net position and changes in it. Net position is the difference between assets and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, which is one way to measure the Corporation’s financial
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Corporation’s net position are one
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating.

The Corporation’s activities are accounted for as a special purpose government, or single enterprise
fund.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 52

6



The Financial Statements

Assets:
Current assets
Noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources-
Deferred Revenue

Net Position:
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net position

Statement of Net Position

Increase (Decrease)

2022 2021 Amount Percentage

$ 51,620,460 $ 33,422,824 $ 18,197,636 54.45%
276,310,263 219,716,460 56,593,803 25.76%
327,930,263 253,139,284 74,791,439 29.55%
1,899,693 11,374,045 (9,474,352) (83.30%)
22,106,683 36,318,314 (14,211,631) (39.13%)
$ 24,006,376 $ 47,692,359 $ (23,685,983) (49.66%)
$ 350,464 $ 153,790 $ 196,674 127.88%
5,798,756 6,008,392 (209,636) (3.49%)
1,480,033 3,459,206 (1,979,173) (57.21%)
4,285,474 3,080,575 1,204,899 39.11%
292,009,620 192,744,962 99,264,658 51.50%

$ 303,573,883 $205,293,135 $ 98,280,748 47.87%

The Corporation’s net position increased from $205.3 million to $303.6 million in fiscal year 2022.
Of this amount, restricted assets totaled $5.8 million, capital assets equaled $5.8 million and the
remaining balance of $292.0 million was unrestricted and available for corporate programs, payment
of obligations, and fulfillment of the Corporation’s public purpose.

The Corporation’s total assets increased from $253.1 million to $327.9 million during fiscal year 2022.
The largest single factor contributing to this increase was the issuance of notes receivable in the

Corporation’s Texas Housing Impact Fund program.

As of August 31, 2022, the Corporation’s current assets totaled $51.6 million and current liabilities
equaled $1.9 million resulting in available net working capital of $49.7 million.

Noncurrent assets consisted of restricted investments held by the bond trustee of $18.9 million; owned
real estate totaling $13.1 million; noncurrent investments of $37.7 million; notes and loans receivable of
$200.4 million; and capital assets net of accumulated depreciation of $5.8 million.

Noncurrent liabilities consisted of bonds payable totaling $18.4 million; notes payable of $2.1 million;

and unearned revenue of $1.6 million.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 53



Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Revenues:
Interest and investment income
Net increase (decrease) in
fair value of investments
Single family income
Rental program income
Multifamily income
Public support
Other

Total income

Expenses:

Interest expense on bonds
& notes payable

Salaries, wages & payroll
related costs

Program and loan
administration

Texas Foundations Fund &
Rebuild Texas grants

Other

Total expenses
Net income
Beginning net position

Ending net position

Increase (Decrease)

2022 2021 Amount Percentage
$ 2,008,059 $ 2,675,450 $ (667,391) (24.94%)
(4,315,229) (2,457,109) (1,858,120) 75.62%
106,192,067 127,920,500 (21,728.,433) (16.99%)
993,316 612,767 380,549 62.10%
712,629 528,944 183,685 34.73%
1,476,162 1,138,971 337,191 29.60%
525,940 482,251 43,689 9.06%
$ 107,592,944 $ 130,901,774 $(23,308.830) (17.81%)
339,729 1,236,568 (896,839) (72.53%)
4,618,078 3,655,394 962,684 26.34%
194,507 644,424 (449.917) (69.82%)
1,960,000 916,000 1,044,000 113.97%
2,199,882 2,029,532 170,350 8.39%
$ 9.312,196 $ 8,481,918 830,278 9.79%
08,280,748 122,419,856 (24,139,108) (19.72%)
205,393,135 82,873,279 122,419,856 147.72%
$ 303,573,883 $ 205,293,135 $ 98,280,748 47.87%

Interest and investment income decreased $0.7 million from the previous year. This resulted primarily
from the decrease in interest earned on general investments. The Corporation’s investments consist
primarily of mortgage-backed securities. The increases and decreases associated with mortgage-backed
securities represent unrealized gains and losses and are required to be recorded in compliance with the
provisions of GASB Statements No. 31 and 72.

The Corporation experienced a decrease in overall revenue of $23.3 million during fiscal year 2022

resulting primarily from a $21.7 million decrease in single family income. The decrease can be

attributed to lower loan volume due to increasing mortgage rates.

Rental Program income increased approximately $380,500 from the previous year resulting primarily
from an increase in properties owned and from the recording of lease revenue. Multifamily Income
increased approximately $184,000 due to greater volume in both the multifamily lending and bond
programs. Public Support increased approximately $337,000 from the previous fiscal year. This was
due an increase in support for the Permanent Supportive Housing Institute.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution.

8

54



Interest expense on bonds and notes payable decreased approximately $897,000 from the previous year.
This is a direct result of the decrease in single family bond activity.

Other expenses are comprised of professional fees, amortization, office and equipment rental and
maintenance, travel, depreciation and grant expenditures.

Business Type Activities

For the purposes of financial reporting, the Corporation is a special purpose government operating as a
single enterprise fund. All activities of the Corporation are categorized as business type activities and
are accounted for in the financial statements.

Budgetary Highlights

The Corporation is not required to adopt a legal budget and has not done so, therefore, no budgetary
highlights or comparison are required.

Relevant Decisions and Economic Factors

Public Purpose - The Corporation is organized, operated and administered exclusively for the promotion
of social welfare, and is a section 115 and 501(¢)(3) nonprofit corporation under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. The Corporation’s mission is to serve the housing needs of moderate - and
lower-income Texans who are not afforded housing finance options through conventional lending
channels.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 55

9



Legislative Reporting Requirements

The number and amount of private grants, donations, or other funds applied for and received by the
Corporation during fiscal year 2022, as well as the use of these funds, were as follows:

FY 2022 Grant Amount Amount Program/
Applications Submitted Status Requested Received Activity

LISC Received  § 10,000 $ 10,000 Harris county Homeownership
Collaborative

TFEE Received $ 30,000 $§ 18,000 Housing Connection Program

Wells Fargo Received $ 20,000 § 35,000 Permanent Supportive
Housing Institute

Texas Community Bank Received  § 10,000 $ 10,000 Permanent Supportive
Housing Institute

Insperity Received $ 5,000 5,000 Permanent Supportive
Housing Institute

Regions Bank Received $ 5,000 $ 5,000 Permanent Supportive
Housing Institute

Frost Bank Received  $ 5,000 $ 5,000 Permanent Supportive
Housing Institute

Dominium Received $ 10,000 $ 10,000 Permanent Supportive
Housing Institute

Texas Capital Bank Received  § 50,000 $ 50,000 Permanent Supportive
Housing Institute

JP Morgan Chase Received $ 30,000 $ 30,000 Permanent Supportive

Housing Institute
Federal Home Loan Bank Received $ 262,500 $ 262,500 Laredo Home Donation
Money Follows the Person Received $ 39,398 $ 39,398 Texas Housing Impact Fund

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 56

10



The number, amount, and purpose of loans provided to affordable housing developers during fiscal
year 2022 were as follows:

Loan in the amount of $387,553 was provided to a non-profit developer for the purpose of
financing interim construction on single family homes.

Loan in the amount of $144,808 was provided to a non-profit developer for the purpose of
financing interim construction on single family homes.

Loan in the amount of $285,719 was provided to a non-profit developer for the purpose of
financing interim construction on single family homes.

Loan in the amount of $1,200,000 was provided to a non-profit developer for the purpose of
financing acquisition and construction costs on a multi-family project.

Loan in the amount of $1,000,000 was provided to a non-profit developer for the purpose of
bridge financing acquisition and construction costs on a multi-family project.

Loan in the amount of $150,088 was provided to a non-profit developer for the purpose of
bridge financing acquisition and construction costs on a multi-family project.

Forgivable loan in the amount of $375,000 was provided to a non-profit developer for the
purpose of construction costs on a multi-family project.

Forgivable loan in the amount of $375,000 was provided to a non-profit developer for the
purpose of construction costs on a multi-family project.

Forgivable loan in the amount of $375,000 was provided to a non-profit developer for the
purpose of construction costs on a multi-family project.

The amount and source of funds deposited into a fund created by the Corporation for the purpose of
providing grants and the number, amount and purpose of any grants provided during fiscal year 2022
were as follows:

$1,910,000 was set aside in the Texas Foundations Fund for the purpose of making grants to
nonprofit organizations and rural government entities for the costs associated with the
construction, rehabilitation, and/or critical repair of single-family homes, as well as the
provision of supportive housing services within multifamily housing. During the year,
ninety (90) such grants were made in the aggregate amount of $1,910,000.

The total amount of revenue earned by the Corporation in excess of its expenditures equaled
$98,280,748 for fiscal year 2022.

Continuance Subject to Review

Under the Texas Sunset Act, the Corporation will be abolished effective September 1, 2027 unless
continued in existence as provided by the Act.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 57

11



Contacting the Corporation’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, investors, and creditors with a general
overview of the Corporation’s finances and to show the Corporation’s accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact
the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation at 6701 Shirley Avenue, Austin, Texas 78752,
phone 512-477-3555.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 58

12



Basic Financial Statements

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 59



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Net Position
As of August 31, 2022

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 6,798,715
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,677,330
Accrued interest 22,744
Investments, at fair value 8,410,790
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 854,591
Accrued interest receivable 264,625
Loans receivable, current portion 72,549
Notes receivable, current portion 28,681,315
Lease receivable, current portion 100,618
Downpayment assistance, current portion 343,492
Prepaid expenses 393,691
Total current assets 51,620,460
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable, net of uncollectible amounts of $9,395 201,769
Notes receivable, net of allowance for loss $413,326 200,220,021
Lease receivable 120,524
Investments, at fair market value 37,661,385
Mortgage servicing rights, net of accumulated amortization of $2,625,774 102,287
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $835,407 5,798,756
Owned real estate 13,120,950
Down payment assistance 142,422
Restricted investments held by bond trustee, at fair market value 18,942,149
Total noncurrent assets 276,310,263
Total assets 327,930,723
(continued)
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 60

13



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Net Position (continued)
As of August 31, 2022

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Notes payable, current portion

Custodial reserve funds

Other current liabilities

Payable from restricted assets held by bond trustee:
Revenue bonds payable, current portion
Accrued interest on revenue bonds

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Notes payable

Revenue bonds payable
Unearned revenue

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service

Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

620,671

64,620
241,129
251,998

385,000
336,275

1,899,693

2,070,132
18,400,154
1,636,397

22,106,683

24,006,376

350,464

350,464

5,798,756

1,480,033
4,285,474
292,009,620

303,573,883

$ 327.930.723

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 61

14



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended August 31, 2022

Operating Revenues:

Interest and investment income $ 2,008,059
Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (4,315,229)
Single family income 106,192,067
Asset oversight and compliance fees 377,957
Rental program income 993,316
Multifamily income 712,629
Land bank income 55,738
Public support:
Federal & state grants 1,268,131
Contributions 208,031
Other operating revenue 92,245
Total operating revenues $ 107,592,944
Operating Expenses:
Interest expense on bonds and notes payable $ 339,729
Program and loan administration 194,507
Texas Foundations Fund and miscellaneous grants 1,960,000
Salaries, wages and payroll related costs 4,618,078
Professional fees and services 519,877
Depreciation and amortization 752,272
Office expense and maintenance 139,885
Travel and meals 82,549
Other operating expenses 705,299
Total operating expenses 9.312,196
Net income 98.280.748
Total net position, beginning 205,293,135
Total net position, ending $ 303,573,883
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 62

15



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended August 31, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and users $ 42,143,607
Payments to employees (3,534,414)
Payments of benefits and other payroll related costs (1,083,664)
Payments to suppliers of goods and services (19,268,532)
Net cash provided by operating activities 18,256,997
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Proceeds from notes payable 125,000
Payments of principal and interest on notes payable (2,148.428)
Payments of principal and interest related to bond maturities and calls (20,840,268)
Net cash used in non-capital financing activities (22,863,696)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments for additions to capital assets (30,387)
Purchase and rehabilitation of single family homes under Rental Program (2,413,190)
Sale of single family homes under ACT Program and Rental Program 625,511
Rehabilitation of single family homes under ACT Program (1,072,548)
Rehabilitation of multifamily apartments (140,615)
Rehabilitation of office building (51,393)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (3,082,622)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from sale and maturities of restricted investments 7,242,927
Proceeds from sale of unrestricted investments 13,783,501
Purchase of unrestricted investments (15,968.,503)
Interest earned on investments 904,877
Net cash provided by investing activities 5,962,802
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,726,519)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,202,564
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 12,476,045
(continued)
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 63

16



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the Year Ended August 31, 2022

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided By Operating Activities

Net income $ 08,280,748

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:
Depreciation and amortization expense 752,272
Unrealized loss on investments 4,315,229
Gain on sale of property (314,485)
Provision for estimated losses and chargeoffs 209,113
In-kind grants (25,688)
Amortization of down payment assistance 343,492
Amortization of bond premium (566,688)

Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts receivable and accrued revenue 3,148,462
Increase in accrued interest receivable (192.,498)
Decrease in loans receivable 81,603
Increase in notes receivable (88.,333,685)
Increase in lease receivable (221,142)
Decrease in down payment assistance loans 343,492
Increase in prepaid expenses (133,925)
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses (35.307)
Decrease in accrued interest payable on bonds (351,371)
Increase in deferred revenue and other liabilities 957,375

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 18,256,997

Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Transactions :

Debt forgiven - Affordable Communities of Texas Veterans’ Program $ 132,602
Debt forgiven - Affordable Housing Partnership $ 37,500
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 64

17



Notes to the
Financial Statements

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 65



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Notes to Financial Statements
Year Ended August 31, 2022

Nature of Activities and Significant Policies

Nature of Activities

Reporting Entity - Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation™) was
incorporated on May 6, 1994 under the Texas Non-Protit Corporation Act, Article 1396.1.01 et
seq., Vernon’s Annotated Texas Civil Statutes as amended, and is legally separate from the State
of Texas and does not receive State appropriated funding. Under Government Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by
GASB Statement No. 61, the Corporation is a special purpose government and a component unit
of the State of Texas for financial reporting purposes. In addition, there are no component units
included within the reporting entity of the Corporation.

The Governing Board consists of five directors, all of which are appointed by the Governor of the
State of Texas. The public purpose of the Corporation is to perform such activities and services
that the Corporation’s Board of Directors determines will promote public health, safety, and
welfare through the provision of adequate, safe and sanitary housing primarily for individuals and
families of low, very low and extremely low income, and to perform activities and services related
to this purpose and for other purposes as set forth in Chapter 2306, Subchapter Y, of the
Government Code, as amended.

The Corporation is a dual-purpose Section 115 governmental entity organized, operated and
administered as a non-profit organization in accordance with Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

The Corporation created three separate entities in April 2022 associated with a project to be
developed beginning in 2023 with the purpose of developing affordable housing. The names of
these entities are Plano-DMA TSAHC Housing, LLC, TSAHC Park on 14" LLC, and TSAHC
MF-GC, LLC. There was no activity related to these new entities as of August 31, 2022.

Dissolution of Entity - The Corporation is subject to Chapter 325 of the Texas Government Code
(the “Texas Sunset Act). Unless continued in existence as provided by the Texas Sunset Act,
the Corporation will be abolished effective September 1, 2027.

Upon dissolution of the Corporation, title to or other interest in real or personal property or rights
thereto owned by the Corporation shall be transferred pursuant to Chapter 2306, Subchapter Y of
the Government Code.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 66

18



Basis of Presentation - The accompanying financial statements of the Corporation have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by GASB.
The Corporation presents its financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments; GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements - Management’s Discussion
and Analysis for State and Local Governments: Omnibus; and GASB Statement No. 38, Certain
Financial Statement Note Disclosures. For financial reporting purposes, the Corporation is
considered a special purpose government.

Corporate Lines of Business

Servicing Operations - Servicing consists of the Corporation’s activities as Master Servicer

for the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs’ (the “Department” or “TDHCA™)
single-family mortgage revenue bond program issues 52, 53, and 54, and servicer of the
Corporation’s own portfolio of single and multifamily loans. The Corporation subcontracts the
servicing related to the Department’s single-family mortgage revenue bond programs.

Asset Oversight and Compliance - These operations are used to account for asset oversight and
compliance monitoring activities performed by the Corporation for multifamily bond properties
for which the Corporation acted as conduit issuer.

Single Family Bond Program - Through the Single-Family Bond Program (SFB Program)

the Corporation provides below market 30-year fixed rate mortgage loans to eligible first-time
homebuyers through the issuance of tax-exempt single-family mortgage revenue bonds. The
Corporation’s SFB Programs provide down payment and closing cost assistance to the borrower
in the form of a grant in an amount up to 5% of the loan amount.

Single Family Mortgage Credit Certificate Program - The Corporation also offers a
single-family Mortgage Credit Certificate Program (the “MCC Program™). Under the MCC
Program, qualified homebuyers are eligible to take a portion of the annual interest paid on their
mortgage as a special tax credit, up to $2,000, each year that they occupy the home as their
principal residence.

Single Family TBA Program - Under the TBA Program, the Corporation finances first-lien
mortgage loans to enable qualified borrowers to purchase single family residences in the State

of Texas. The TBA program is a non-bond financing program which utilizes the conventional
loan market through a third-party provider (the “TBA provider”). The TBA provider agrees

to purchase mortgage loans (which have been pooled and securitized into mortgage-backed
securities) from the Corporation for a period of approximately 90 to 120 days, at a specified price
based on the interest rate of the mortgage loan. The TBA provider provides pricing each day
based on market fluctuations in interest rates. The program is referred to as TBA (to be
announced) because the specific mortgage-backed security to be delivered is not known at the
time the trade is initially made but is “to be announced” at a later date before the trade is settled.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 67

19



Affordable Communities of Texas - Using its statutory authority to own property tax-free,

the Corporation has created the Affordable Communities of Texas Program (the “ACT Program™)
which is the first statewide land bank and land trust program in Texas. The land bank provides
for the acquisition and temporary holding (up to ten years) of land or buildings for the purpose of
redeveloping the properties for affordable housing. The land trust provides for the acquisition and
long-term holding of land or buildings for the purpose of redevelopment for affordable housing.

A property held by the land trust will be owned in perpetuity by the Corporation and leased for
residential housing that benefits low-income households. The ACT Program is financed by the
Corporation utilizing federal and private funding along with property donations.

Texas Housing Impact Fund - The Texas Housing Impact Fund (“THIF”) provides financing for
the acquisition, construction and redevelopment of single and multifamily housing units for
low-income families in rural communities and high need areas. See Note 4.

Rental Program - The Corporation’s Rental Program provides affordable, below-market rental
homes and apartments in high opportunity neighborhoods in various Metropolitan Statistical Areas
(the “MSA™) to eligible low-income families. Additionally, the Corporation owns an office
building, which it leases to other 501(c)(3) nonprofits.

Multifamily 501(c¢)(3) Bond Program - The Corporation acts as a conduit issuer of multifamily
mortgage revenue bonds for qualified 501(c)(3) owners of multifamily housing developments.
Each multifamily property owner must agree to restrict a certain number of units so that they are
affordable in their marketplace. Additionally, each property must provide significant resident
and/or community services with excess revenues.

Multifamily Private Activity Bond Program - Under the Multifamily Private Activity Bond
Program (the “MPAB Program™), the Corporation administers 10 percent of the State’s volume
cap allocation of private activity bonds for multifamily residential rental housing each year.

For the 2022 program year, the amount available for issuance was approximately $85 million.
The Corporation’s MPAB Program provides financing for new construction, or acquisition and
rehabilitation of existing multifamily rental properties. The Corporation is required by statute to
target areas, such as cities and counties, and to issue requests for proposals to developers to
provide the type of housing requested by the target area. In exchange for receiving the lower
tax-exempt revenue bond interest rate, multifamily complexes financed through the MPAB
Program must provide a minimum number of affordable units.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting - The Corporation prepares its financial statements using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
earned and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. GASB Statement No. 62, which was adopted in 2013, codifies all FASB and
AICPA pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989 that do not conflict with GASB
pronouncements. As a result, the Corporation no longer must consider pre-1989 FASB or AICPA
pronouncements nor will it be permitted to apply “new” FASB pronouncements issued after
November 30, 1989.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term investments with a maturity at the date of purchase of three months
or less, which are highly liquid, and can be readily exchanged for cash at amounts equal to their
stated value.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 68

20



Investments - The Corporation’s investment policies and types of investments are governed

by Section 2256 of the Texas Government Code (the “Public Funds Investment Act™). The
Corporation’s management believes that it complied with the requirements of the Public Funds
Investment Act and the Corporation’s investment policy. The Corporation follows the provisions
of GASB Statement No. 31 and 72, which requires certain types of investments to be reported at
fair value on the statement of net position. The Corporation utilizes established quoted market
prices for determining the fair value of its debt securities in reserve funds. The fair value of the
Corporation’s mortgage backed securities has been estimated by each bond issue’s trustee using a
pricing service.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31 and 72, changes in the fair value of investments are
reported in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as a net increase or
decrease in the fair value of investments.

Loans Receivable - Mortgage loans originated by the Corporation are carried at the unpaid principal
balance outstanding, net of allowances for possible loan losses.

Mortgage loans purchased by the Corporation are carried at the amortized cost of loans acquired,
net of allowances for possible loan losses.

Notes Receivable - Notes receivable is comprised of loans made under the ACT, THIF, MPAB
and Single Family Second Lien Programs. Notes are carried at the unpaid principal balance
outstanding.

Allowance for Possible Losses - Losses are charged to the allowance for possible loan losses
when the loss occurs or when a determination is made that a loss is likely to occur. During the
year, management estimates the level of future losses to determine whether the allowance is
adequate to absorb anticipated losses in the existing mortgage loans. Based on these estimates,

a provision for possible losses on loans is credited to the allowance in order to adjust the allowance
to levels estimated to be adequate to absorb reasonably foreseeable losses.

While management uses available information to recognize losses in the loan portfolio, future
adjustments may be necessary due to changes in economic conditions. However, it is the
judgment of management that the allowances are currently adequate to absorb reasonably
foreseeable losses in the existing portfolios.

Amortization of Bond Premium - As of August 31, 2022 the premium related to the SFB
Programs totaled approximately $555,000. Bond premium amortization during fiscal year 2022
totaled approximately $567,000.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - The Corporation complies with GASB
Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position, which provides guidance for reporting the financial statement
elements of deferred outflows of resources, which represent the consumption of the Corporation’s
net position that is applicable to a future reporting period, and deferred inflows of resources, which
represent the Corporation’s acquisition of net position applicable to a future reporting period.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 69

21



GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or
deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities
and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously
reported as assets and liabilities. See Note 9 for additional information on deferred inflows of
resources.

Fair Value Measurements - The Corporation complies with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value
Measurement and Application, which defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction. Fair value accounting requires
characterization of the inputs used to measure fair value into a three-level fair value hierarchy

as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are based on unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets
or liabilities in an active market the entity has the ability to access

e Level 2 inputs are observable inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained
from sources independent from the entity

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs that reflect the entity’s own assumptions
about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability
developed based on the best information available.

There are three general valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value:

e Market approach - uses prices generated by market transactions involving identical
or comparable assets or liabilities

e Cost approach - uses the amount that currently would be required to replace the
service capacity of an asset (replacement cost)

e Income approach - uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to present
amounts based on current market expectations.

Purchased Mortgage Servicing Rights - Purchase Mortgage Servicing Rights are recorded at
cost and are amortized in relation to the remaining value of the related mortgage balances at the
end of each period so that the value of the servicing rights equals the same percentage of the
outstanding mortgage balance as when originally purchased. Amortization expense for fiscal year
2022 was approximately $32,000; accumulated amortization as of August 31, 2022 equaled
approximately $2.6 million.

Capital Assets - All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition
value on the date donated. Expenses for betterments that materially extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized at cost. Land owned by the Corporation is not depreciated. Furniture and
equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, usually 3 to 5 years. The building is depreciated using the straight-line method over

30 years. The Corporation capitalizes assets with a cost greater than $1,500 and a useful life of
more than one year.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 70

22



Compensated Absences - Employees of the Corporation earn annual leave on a monthly basis.
Each employee is entitled to earned but unused annual leave as compensation upon termination of
employment. The total compensated absences accrued liability as of August 31, 2022 was
approximately $394,000.

Reserve and Custodial Accounts - The Corporation holds certain cash reserves totaling
approximately $241,000 as of August 31, 2022 for the benefit of three multifamily projects that
are financed by the Corporation.

Net Position - When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
Corporation’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Donated Property Valuation - When the Corporation receives donated property, a Broker’s Price
Opinion (the “BPO”) is obtained, which estimates the acquisition value. The BPO typically offers
arange of values. The property is booked at the lowest value in the range offered in the BPO.

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses - Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services in connection with the bond programs, lending programs,
and federal and other grants. Operating expenses are primarily related to interest expense on
bonds and general administrative expenses. The Corporation considers all its revenues and
expenses to be operating revenues and expenses.

Change in Accounting Principle for Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement - For

the year ended August 31, 2022, the Corporation implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.
GASB Statement No. 87 enhances the relevance and consistency of information of the
Corporation’s leasing activities and establishes requirements for lease accounting based on the
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessor is required to
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. These changes were incorporated
in the Corporation’s financial statements for the year ended August 31, 2022 but had no effect on
the beginning net position since the Corporation recognized a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources of $58,507 at September 1, 2021.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 71

23



Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - In May 2019, the GASB issued GASB
Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligation, effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15, 2021. The objective of GASB Statement No. 91 is to provide a single method of
reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with

(1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations,
and (3) related note disclosures. GASB Statement No. 91 will require issuers to disclose general
information about their conduit debt obligations, organized by type of commitment, including the
aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’ conduit debt obligations and a description
of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities related to supporting the debt service
of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about the amount recognized and how
the liabilities changed during the reporting period. Management is evaluating the effects that the
full implementation of GASB Statement No. 91 will have on its financial statements for the year
ended August 31, 2023.

In May 2020, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements, effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. The objective
of GASB Statement No. 96 is to improve accounting and financial reporting by establishing a
definition for a subscription-based information technology arrangement (“SBITA”) and providing
uniform guidance for accounting and financial reporting for transactions that meet that definition.
GASB Statement No. 96 will require a government to report a right-to-use subscription asset as an
intangible asset and a corresponding subscription liability for a SBITA, and also require certain
disclosures about the SBITA. GASB Statement No. 96 also provides capitalization criteria for
outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA.
Management is evaluating the effects that the full implementation of GASB Statement No. 96
will have on its financial statements for the year ended August 31, 2023.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents at August 31, 2022 consisted of bank
deposits totaling $6,798,715.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents at August 31, 2022 totaled $5,677,330. The bond trustee
maintained $1,150,656 in money market mutual funds. The Corporation held $4,285,545 in a
checking account, which were restricted grant funds. The Corporation also maintained three
custodial accounts with a combined total of $241,129 pledged as reserves on three multifamily
projects. These funds were maintained in interest bearing demand accounts.

Investments - GASB Statement No. 72 regarding Fair Value Measurement and Application for
financial reporting purposes categorizes financial instruments within three different levels of risk
dependent upon the measure of their fair value and pricing.

Because the investments are restricted by Policy and state law to active secondary market, the
market approach is being used for valuation. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets, liabilities,
or a group of assets and liabilities.

The exit or fair market prices used for these fair market valuations of the portfolio are all Level 1
and Level 2 and represent unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities that have been accessed at the measurement date.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 72

24



As of August 31, 2022, the securities to be priced in the portfolio are:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US Agency Obligations  $ 23,176,166 $ - $ - $ 23,176,166
US Treasury Obligations 7,205,760 - - 7,205,760
Municipal Obligations 5,418,461 - - 5,418,461
US Agency MBS - 7,279,459 - 7,279,459
Commercial Paper - 2,992,329 - 2,992,329
Total Fair Value $ 35,800,387 $10,271,788 $ - $ 46,072,175
Investments not subject to GASB 72 -
Total Unrestricted Investments $ 46,072,175

The Corporation’s unrestricted investments consisted of the following at August 31, 2022:

Interest Fair Market Unrealized

Description/Maturity Rate Cost Value Gain/(Loss)
Toyota Motor Credit CP 0.503% $ 2989057 $ 2992329 $ 3,272
State of Hawaii 0.428% 1,250,000 1,247,462 (2,538)
Miami-Dade County FL 0.480% 1,994,925 1,959,320 (35,605)
Marshall ISD 1.090% 2,440,448 2,211,679 (228,769)
Total Short Term Investments 8,674,430 8,410,790 (263,640)
Pass through securities

GNMA - 10/20/2034 5.99% 2,085 2,214 129
Pass through securities

GNMA - 2036-2042 3.50-6.10% 6,460,966 6,468,606 7,640
Pass through securities

FNMA - 2035-2037* 5.49 -5.75% 232,453 233,519 1,066
Pass through securities

FHLMC - 2036-2038* 5.49 - 6.10% 558,550 575,120 16,570
Treasury Note 1.656% 4,871,036 4,757,225 (113,811)
Treasury Note 2.904% 2,484,951 2,448,535 (36,416)
FHLB Call Note 2.000% 2,500,000 2,392,833 (107,167)
FFCB Call Note 0.317% 2,497,214 2,404,593 (92,621)
FFCB Call Note 0.371% 2,496,875 2,368,936 (127,939)
FHLB Call Note 0.400% 3,000,000 2,828,372 (171,628)
FHLB Call Note 0.400% 3,000,000 2,823,329 (176,671)
FHLB Call Note 1.000% 3,000,000 2,819,384 (180,616)
FHLB Call Note 0.500% 2,350,000 2,213,269 (136,731)
FHLB Call Note 0.500% 3,000,000 2,825,450 (174,550)
FHLB Call Note 0.475% 2,500,000 2,500,000 -
Total Long Term Investments $ 38,954,130 $ 37,661,385 $ (1,292,745)
Total Investments $47.628.560 $46,072,175  $ (1,556,385)

*Pledged as collateral against cash advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas.

See Note 10.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 73

25



Because the investments are restricted by Policy and state law to active secondary market, the
market approach is being used for valuation. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets, liabilities,
or a group of assets and liabilities.

Mortgage-backed securities are valued using Level 2 inputs that are based on market data obtained
from independent sources. The investments are reported by the Corporation at fair value in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 72.

As of August 31, 2022, the restricted securities to be priced in the portfolio were as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
US Agency MBS $ - $18,942.149  § - $ 18,942,149
Total Fair Value $ - $ 18,942,149 $ - $ 18,942,149
Investments not subject to GASB 72 -
Total Restricted Investments $ 18,942,149

The Corporation’s restricted investments held by bond trustee consisted of the following at
August 31, 2022:

Interest Fair Market Unrealized
Description/Maturity Rate Cost Value Gain
GNMA/FNMA
Investments - 2040/2042 3.5-4.75% $ 6,343,768 $ 6,420,237 $ 76,469
GNMA/FNMA
Investments - 2049 4.3-4.8% 12,252,321 12,521,912 269,591
Total Investments $ 18,596,089 $ 18,942,149 $ 346,060

Interest income on investments held by the bond trustee includes the following amounts:

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds Series 2011A,2013A $ 316,581
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds Series 2019A 686,000
$ 1,002,581

Compared to the prior fiscal year, the fair value of investments held by the bond trustee as of
August 31, 2022 has decreased by approximately $14.1 million. The Corporation follows GASB
Statement No. 31 and 72, whereby investments are required to be reported at fair value at the
statement of net position date rather than at cost, except for money-market investments and
participating interest-earning investment contracts and certain external investment pools, which
may be reported at fair value or at amortized cost, provided that the fair value of these investments
are not significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of the issuer or by other
factors. In addition, GASB Statement No. 31 also affects the way in which unrealized gains and
losses are recognized for financial reporting purposes.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 74

26



The Corporation holds approximately $18.9 million (valued under GASB Statement No. 72 at fair
value) in mortgage-backed securities issued by Ginnie Mae (“GNMA”), Fannie Mae (“FNMA”™)
and Freddie Mac (“FMCC”) through the Corporation’s SFB Programs. These securities have a
face value of approximately $18.6 million and unrealized gain of approximately $346,000 as of
August 31, 2022. The Corporation is susceptible to risk that the market for such mortgage-backed
securities could decline, which would eventually result in a loss of value for the investments held.
Further, it is likely that the Corporation will only collect the face value of the mortgage-backed
securities as the mortgages are repaid in the future.

Credit Risk - The primary stated objective of the Corporation’s adopted “Investment Policy™

is the safety of principal and avoidance of principal loss. Credit risk within the Corporation's
portfolio, among the authorized investments approved by the Corporation's adopted Investment
Policy, is represented only in time and demand deposits, repurchase agreements, commercial
paper, municipal obligations and non-rated SEC registered money market mutual funds. In 2017,
the Corporation received surplus funds from a bond buy-back and established a separate portfolio
(“Surplus Funds™) with the same authorized investments but a longer maximum maturity of thirty
(30) years for mortgage-backed securities.

State law and the Corporation’s adopted Investment Policy restricts both time and demand
deposits, including certificates of deposit (CD), to those banks doing business in the State of Texas
and further requires full insurance and/or collateralization from these depositories (banks and
savings banks). Certificates of deposit are limited to a stated maturity of one year. Brokered CD’s
must be FDIC insured and delivered versus payment to the Corporation’s depository with a further
restriction on maximum maturity to one year. The FDIC insurance must be verified before
purchase. On all time and demand deposits collateral at a 102% margin is required and collateral
is limited to obligations of the US Government, its agencies or instrumentalities. Independent
safekeeping for collateral is required outside the pledging bank's holding company with monthly
reporting. Securities are priced at market on a daily basis as a contractual responsibility of the
bank.

In accordance with the adopted policy and state law, repurchase agreements are limited to those
with defined termination dates and executed with a primary dealer (as defined by the Federal
Reserve). The agreements require an industry standard, written master repurchase agreement and
a minimum 102% margin on collateral as well as delivery versus payment settlement and
independent safekeeping. Repurchase agreements may not exceed 90 days to stated maturity.
Reverse repurchase agreements may not exceed 90 days after the term of the reverse and funds
may be used only to acquire authorized investments matched to the reverse.

State law and the adopted Investment Policy require that municipal obligations have a maximum
stated maturity of 3 years or less and be rated at least A or its equivalent by at least two nationally
recognized rating agencies.

State law and the adopted Investment Policy require that commercial paper have a maximum
stated maturity of 270 days or less and be rated A1/P1 or its equivalent by at least two nationally
recognized rating agencies.

The adopted Investment Policy restricts money market mutual fund investment to SEC registered
money market mutual funds striving to maintain a $1 net asset value and with a WAM of 60 days
as further defined by state law. Neither the state law nor the Investment Policy requires a rating on
money market funds.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 75

27



Local government investment pools in Texas are required to be rated AAA, or equivalent, by at
least one nationally recognized rating agency. The adopted Investment Policy further restricts
investments to AAA-rated, “2a-7 like” (constant dollar) local government investment pools.

As of August 31, 2022, holdings in the General Portfolio and Surplus Portfolio had total fair
market values of $50,240,572 and $7,277,245 respectively and included:

e Al1/P1 commercial paper represented 5.20% of the total portfolio,

e funds held in a Federal Home Loan Bank account represented 1.81% of the total
portfolio,

¢ funds invested in fully insured or collateralized bank accounts represented 8.13%
of the total portfolio,

e holdings in a AAA-rated local government pool represented 9.96% of the total
portfolio,

¢ holdings in state and local debt obligations represented 9.42% of the total portfolio,
holdings in US Treasury Notes represented 12.53% of the total portfolio,

¢ holdings in US Government agency securities represented 40.29% of the total
portfolio, and

¢ holdings in US mortgage-backed securities represented 12.65% of the total portfolio

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Corporation recognizes over-concentration of assets by
market sector or maturity as a risk to the portfolio. The Corporation’s adopted Investment Policy
establishes diversification as a major objective of the General Funds investment program. The
Investment Policy requires that no issuer or institution represent more than 50% of the total
portfolio with the exception of US Treasuries. All diversification guidelines were met.

Interest Rate Risk - In order to limit interest and market rate risk from changes in interest rates,
the Corporation’s adopted Investment Policy sets a maximum stated maturity for US obligations of
3 years in the General Portfolio. The Investment Policy sets a maximum weighted average
maturity of two (2) years.

Surplus bond funds have a maximum maturity limitation of ten (10) years for CMOs and
thirty (30) years for government obligations and mortgage-backed securities.

In the total portfolio certificates of deposit are restricted to a maturity of one (1) year and
commercial paper 90 days. On 2/17/11, the Corporation received $22,957 in a GNMA
participation certificate # 586163 as payment of an obligation due from the Federal National
Mortgage Association. The stated maturity is 10/20/2034. State law does not require securities
obtained in this manner to be liquidated and keeping the security until maturity is permitted.

As of August 31, 2022, the general portfolio, excluding the one GNMA, held no security with a
stated maturity date beyond 942 days. With the inclusion of the one GNMA the dollar weighted
average maturity of the total general portfolio was 442 days.

The Surplus Funds portfolio had a dollar weighted average maturity of 6,669 days and the longest
security was 6,819 days.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 76

28



3.

As of August 31, 2022, the general portfolio contained two (2) municipals and nine (9) US agency
structured notes (callable) which might be affected by interest rate risk. Their total fair market
value was $26,382,948.

As of August 31, 2022, the Surplus Portfolio contained mortgage-backed securities which might
be affected by interest rate risk.

Custodial Credit Risk - To control custody and safekeeping risk state law and the Corporation’s
adopted Investment Policy requires collateral for all time and demand deposits, as well as
collateral for repurchase agreements, be transferred delivery versus payment and held by an
independent party approved by the Corporation and held in the Corporation’s name. The
custodian is required to provide original safekeeping receipts and monthly reporting of positions
with position descriptions including market value. Repurchase agreements and deposits must be
collateralized to 102% and be executed under written agreements. Depository agreements are
executed under the terms of Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act.

The counterparty of each type of transaction is held contractually liable for monitoring and
maintaining the required collateral margins on a daily basis.

The Corporation’s portfolio disclosure as of August 31, 2022:

e the portfolio contained no repurchase agreements
e all bank demand deposits were fully insured and collateralized

e all pledged bank collateral for demand deposits was held by an independent
institution outside the bank’s holding company.
Loans Receivable

Loans receivable are carried at the unpaid principal balance, net of loss allowances. A summary of
loans receivable at August 31, 2022 were as follows:

Loans Receivable at September 1, 2021 $ 355921
Additions -
Paydowns (72,208)
Loans Receivable at August 31, 2022 283,713
Allowance for possible loan losses (9,395)
Net Balance at August 31, 2022 $ 274,318

The current portion of loans receivable at August 31, 2022 was $72,549; the remaining balance of
$201,769 is classified as noncurrent loans receivable.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 77

29



The activity for allowance for possible loan losses for fiscal year 2022 was as follows:

Balance at September 1, 2021 $ (247)
Current Year Decreases 247

Loss Applied to the Allowance (9,395)
Balance at August 31, 2022 $ (9,395)

The Corporation considers loans receivable to be delinquent when they become more than 60 days
past due.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable were comprised of loans made under the THIF Program, the ACT Program and
the Single Family TBA Program. Under the ACT Veterans Housing Initiative, donated properties
are sold to Veterans at 75% of the appraised value and the remaining 25% is carried as notes
receivable which are forgiven over 10 years. Under the Single Family TBA Program, the
second-liens are forgiven after three years if the homebuyers meet the criteria. Notes are carried
at the unpaid principal balance outstanding.

A summary of activity for notes receivable for the year ended August 31, 2022 was as follows:

Balance at September 1, 2021 $141,018,769
Additions 97,275,090
Collections (8,844,549)
Accumulated Amortization (134,648)
Balance at August 31, 2022 229,314,662
Allowance for possible losses (413,326)
Net balance at August 31, 2022 $228.901,336

The current portion of notes receivable at August 31, 2022 is $28,681,315; the remaining balance
of $200,220,021 is classified as non-current notes receivable. Management has established an
allowance for loss equal to 5% of the Texas Housing Impact Fund loan balance.

The activity for allowance for possible note losses for fiscal year 2022 is as follows:

Balance at September 1, 2021 $ 451,118
Current year decrease (37,792)
Loss applied to the allowance -
Balance at August 31, 2022 $ 413,326
This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 78

30



5.  Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended August 31, 2022 consisted of the following:

Cost or Basis In Property
Balance Balance
September 1, August 31,
2021 Additions Deletions 2022
Land $ 1,248,001 $ - $ - $ 1,248,001
Building 4,556,763 10,083 - 4,566,846
Vehicles 29,738 - - 29,738
Furniture & Fixtures 769,389 20,189 - 789,578
Total $ 6,603,891 $ 30,273 $ - $ 6,634,163
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance Balance
September 1, August 31,
2021 Additions Deletions 2022
Building $ 99,067 $ 149,798 $ - $ 248,865
Vehicles 2,680 2,474 - 5,154
Furniture & Fixtures 493,752 87,636 - 581,388
Total $ 595,499 $ 239,908 $ - $ 835,407

Capital assets, less accumulated depreciation, at August 31, 2022 totaled $5,798,756.

6. Income Tax Status

The Corporation is a governmental entity and a non-profit corporation operating under

section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, is generally exempt from federal income taxes
and, accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the financial statements. The
Corporation is classified as a non-profit organization other than a private foundation. Tax returns
for the past three years are open to examination by the Internal Revenue Service. There are no
examinations currently in process. Management believes it has appropriate support for any tax
position taken and as such does not have any uncertain tax positions that are required to be
reported in these financial statements.

7. Leases

The Corporation, as a lessor, has entered into three agreements with tenants for the lease of office
space at two properties owned by the Corporation. For the year ended August 31, 2022, the
Corporation reported lease revenue of $62,128 and interest revenue of $4,035 related to lease
payments received. These leases are summarized as follows:

1910 E Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. - On September 1, 2020, the Corporation entered into a
three-year lease agreement ending August 31, 2023 with a tenant for office space. The
Corporation receives monthly payments and there are no renewal options or termination clauses
within the lease agreement.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 79

31



2200 E Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. - On December 27, 2021, the Corporation entered into a
three-year lease agreement ending December 31, 2024 with a tenant for office space. The
Corporation receives monthly payments and there are no renewal options or termination clauses
within the lease agreement. On July 1, 2022, the Corporation entered into a three-year lease
agreement ending June 30, 2025 with a tenant for office space. The Corporation receives monthly
payments and there are no renewal options or termination clauses within the lease agreement.

On September 1, 2022, the Corporation entered into a three-year lease agreement ending

August 31, 2025 with a tenant for office space at 2200 E Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. The
Corporation receives monthly payments and there are no renewal options or termination clauses
within the lease agreement. There was no lease receivable, deferred inflows of resources, or lease
revenue recorded in the Corporation’s financial statements as of and for the year ending

August 31, 2022 related to this lease agreement since it was entered into subsequent to year-end.

Custodial Reserve Funds

The Corporation holds certain cash reserves for the benefit of three multifamily projects that were
financed by the Corporation through the THIF. See Note 4.

Reserve activity for the year ended August 31, 2022 was as follows:

Balance at September 1, 2021 $ 214,366
Deposits 36,727
Disbursements (9,964)
Balance at August 31, 2022 $ 241,129

Deferred Inflows of Resources and Unearned Revenue

In a prior year, the Corporation received $679,800 from the Department’s Housing Trust Fund for
the origination of down payment and closing cost assistance loans for households who earn less
than 60% of the area median family income. The Corporation established a loan receivable for
each loan made with a corresponding offset to deferred revenue. Recognition of the deferred
revenue occurs as loans are repaid. Revenue recognized during fiscal year 2022 totaled $19,771.
The remaining deferred revenue for this portfolio was $134,019 at August 31, 2022.

Due to the implementation of GASB No. 87 in the current year, the Corporation recorded deferred
inflows of resources related to the lease agreements discussed in Note 7. Revenue recognized
during fiscal year 2022 totaled $62,128. The remaining deferred revenue related to these lease
agreements was $216,445 at August 31, 2022.

The prepaid issuer fees from twenty-six (26) multifamily bond portfolios are recognized as income
throughout the year. As of August 31, 2022, unearned revenue related to these properties totaled
$351,280.

In the fiscal year ended August 31, 2019, the Corporation received $3.75 million from the Capital
Magnet Fund in the form of a grant. The revenue will be earned as it is expended, and
approximately $102,600 was earned in the fiscal year ended August 31, 2022.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 80

32



In the fiscal year ended August 31, 2020, the Corporation received $2.31 million from the Health
& Human Services Commission in the form of a grant. The revenue will be earned as it is
expended, and approximately $1.13 million was earned in the fiscal year ended August 31, 2022.

A summary of deferred inflows of resources and unearned revenue activity for fiscal year 2022
was as follows:

Deferred

Inflows of Unearned

Resources Revenue
Balance at September 1, 2021 $ 153,790 $ 2,811,719
Additions 278,573 1,262,148
Revenue Earned (62,128) (2,437,470)
Loan Payments Received (19,771) -
Balance at August 31, 2022 $ 350,464 $ 1,636,397

10. Notes Payable
As of August 31, 2022, notes payable consisted of:

Note Payable to Federal Home Loan Bank, installment note
with equal payments of $2,568.65 monthly, 6.345% interest,
due November 2023, secured by mortgage backed securities. $ 247413

Note Payable to Federal Home Loan Bank, installment note
with equal payments of $4,086.48 monthly, 6.345% interest,
due November 2023, secured by mortgage backed securities. 393,626

Note Payable to Federal Home Loan Bank, installment note
with equal payments of $3,538.30 monthly, 2.993% interest,
due October 2026, secured by note receivable. 618,713

Note Payable to Texas Community Bank, interest only at 2.00%
payable quarterly, due in full May 2025, unsecured. 500,000

Note Payable to Austin Community Foundation, interest only at
1.0% payable quarterly, due in full April 10, 2024, unsecured. 125,000

Note Payable to The Congregation of the Sisters of Charity,
interest only at 1.00% payable annually, due in full January 13,

2026, unsecured. 250,000
Total Notes Payable $ 2,134,752
Current Portion of Notes Payable 64,620
Noncurrent Notes Payable $ 2,070,132

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 81

33



11.

The summary of notes payable activity for the year ended August 31, 2022 was as follows:

Balance at September 1, 2021 $ 4,075,083
Advances 125,000
Repayments (2,065,331)
Balance at August 31, 2022 $ 2,134,752
The debt service requirements on notes payable for the next five years are as follows:
Year Ended August 31, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 64,620 71,457 136,077
2024 750,702 40,196 790,898
2025 525,768 25,860 551,628
2026 276,550 16,834 293,384
2027 517,112 2,574 519,686
Total $ 2,134,752  § 156,921 $ 2,291,673
Bonded Indebtedness

The Corporation issues tax exempt revenue bonds to assist in financing the purchase of homes by,
or the construction of rental housing for, families with low to moderate incomes.

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds do not constitute a general obligation of the Corporation
or the State of Texas. Single family bonds are collateralized and payable solely from revenues and
other assets pledged under the bond indentures and held in trust by a Bond Trustee. Assets
pledged consist primarily of mortgage-backed securities and investments. Interest on bonds is
payable semiannually or monthly. There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in
the various bond indentures. The Corporation is in compliance with all significant limitations and
restrictions at August 31, 2022.

Bonds Bonds Bonds Amounts
Interest Outstanding Bonds  Bonds Matured/ Refunded/ Outstanding Due Within
Description Rate 9/1/21 Issued Retired Extinguished 8/31/22 One Year
Single
Family 2019
Series 2019A Fixed $ 24,060,000 $ $(11,320,000) $ $12,740,000 $ 220,000
Single
Family
2009-2013
Series 2011A Fixed 1,745,000 - (535,000) - 1,210,000 165,000
Series
2009/2011B Fixed 7,020,000 (7,020,000) - -
Series 2013A Fixed 5,070,000 - (790,000) $ 4,280,000 -
Total
Principal 37,895,000 $ - $ (19,665,000) $ $18,230,000 $ 385,000
Unamortized
Premium 1,121,842 555,154
Total $ 39,016,842 $ 18,785,154

The current portion of bonds payable at August 31, 2022 was $385,000. The remaining balance of
$18,400,154 is classified as noncurrent bonds payable.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 82

34



12.

13.

The principal and interest expense requirements for the next five years and thereafter are
summarized below:

Year Ended August 31, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 385,000 § 546,844 § 931,844
2024 400,000 534,327 934,327
2025 420,000 520,945 940,945
2026 440,000 506,733 946,733
2027 455,000 491,673 946,673
2028 thru 2032 2,450,000 2,230,872 4,680,872
2033 thru 2037 3,080,000 1,916,023 4,996,023
2038 thru 2042 4,380,000 1,356,995 5,736,995
2043 thru 2047 3,575,000 775,488 4,350,488
2048 thru 2052 2,645,000 170,958 2,815,958

Total $ 18,230,000 $ 9,050,858 27,280,858

The sources of pledged revenue to pay the principal and interest on the bonds is derived from the
principal and interest collected from the GNMA, FHLMC and FNMA mortgage-backed securities
as well as reserves set up at the bond closing. For fiscal year 2022, the debt service requirement
equaled $19,665,000 in bond principal and $1,175,268 in bond interest expense, totaling
$20,840,268. As of August 31, 2022, pledged revenue totaled $25,783,444.

ACT Veterans Housing Initiative

The ACT Veterans Housing Initiative is an initiative funded primarily through the donation of
foreclosed homes from banks and other mortgage servicers. The intent of the initiative is to
provide low and no-cost housing to U.S. military veterans who are disabled or low-income.

The Corporation coordinates the initiative on a statewide basis within Texas using the Affordable
Communities of Texas Land Banking program. The Corporation currently has a network of more
than twenty locally based non-profit housing providers that manage rehabilitation of the properties
and qualification of eligible homebuyers within their local communities.

Properties are made available to qualified veteran households either at a significant discount or as
a fully donated home. If discounted, the property is sold for 75% of its post-rehab appraised value
with the Corporation placing a deferred forgivable second lien for the remaining 25% of value.

If donated, the property is provided at no cost with the Corporation placing a deferred forgivable
lien for 100% of the post-rehab appraised value.

Mortgage Credit Certificate Program

The MCC Program was created to assist low and moderate-income first-time homebuyers. Under
the MCC Program, the homebuyer is eligible to claim a portion of the annual interest paid on the
mortgage as a special tax credit each year for the life of the home loan. The Corporation must
convert single family bond cap each year to issue MCCs. During the fiscal year ended August 31,
2022, the MCC Program revenue totaled approximately $1,215,000 and is included in single
family income in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 83

35



14.

15.

16.

17.

Texas Foundations Fund

The Texas Foundations Fund program provides grants to non-profit organizations and rural
government entities for the costs associated with the construction, rehabilitation, or repair of
single-family homes, or the provision of supportive housing services within multifamily housing.
During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2022, the Corporation made Foundations Fund grants
totaling $1,910,000.

Down Payment Assistance Program

Under various Single-Family Home Loan Programs, the Corporation provides 30-year fixed rate
mortgage loans to eligible homebuyers. These programs provide down payment and closing cost
assistance in the form of an interest-free loan that is paid back to the Corporation in the form of

a higher interest rate. Down payment assistance is offered in amounts up to 5% of the home loan.

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2022, the Corporation offered a second lien down
payment assistance loan to borrowers participating in the Single Family TBA Program. The loan
is forgiven after three years if the homebuyer does not sell or refinance the home. As of

August 31, 2022, second lien notes receivable totaled $219,165,160.

Employee Benefits

The Corporation offers a defined contribution 403(b) retirement plan to its employees. Under the
plan, the Corporation matches dollar for dollar the first three percent (3%) and one-half percent
(.5%) of the fourth and fifth percent of the employee’s annual gross salary contributed to the plan.
The maximum employer contribution is 4%. Total employer contributions for the fiscal year
ended August 31, 2022, were $99,034.

Conduit Debt

The Corporation is authorized to issue statewide 501(c)(3) tax-exempt multifamily mortgage
revenue bonds under the Texas Government Code §2306.555. The 501(c)(3) bond program
provides long-term variable or fixed rate financing to non-profit borrowers/developers of new or
existing multifamily rental properties in order to generate and/or preserve affordable rental
housing. The Corporation may finance single developments or pools of properties located
throughout the State of Texas. Borrowers must agree to set aside a prescribed percentage of a
property’s units for rent to persons and families of low income.

Under the MPAB Program, the Corporation administers 10 percent or approximately $85 million
of the State’s volume cap allocation of private activity bonds for multifamily residential rental
housing.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 84

36



18.

19.

20.

The 501(c)(3) and private activity revenue bonds are secured by the property financed and are
payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Neither the
Corporation, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying financial statements. As of August 31, 2022, there were twenty-four series of
multifamily housing revenue bonds outstanding with an aggregate principal amount payable of
approximately $369.6 million.

Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues

The Corporation is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, and natural disasters. For all such risks, the
Corporation has purchased commercial insurance in varying amounts to mitigate the risk of loss.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Corporation participates in a number of federal and state financial assistance programs.
Although the Corporation’s grant programs have been audited in accordance with the provisions of
the Uniform Guidance and the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards through
August 31, 2022, these programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantor
agencies. The amounts, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies
cannot be determined at this time, although the Corporation expects such amounts, if any, to be
immaterial.

Non-Cash Contributions

During the year ended August 31, 2022, Google, Inc. made an in-kind donation of $28,688 for
advertising.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 85

37



21.

Segment Information

See Note 1 for a description of the Corporation’s operations. Segment financial information of
the Corporation’s only proprietary fund type at August 31, 2022 and for the year then ended is
as follows:

38

Summary Financial Information Amount
Operating revenue $107,592,944
Depreciation and amortization 752,272
Net income 98,280,748
Net working capital* 49,720,767
Total assets 327,930,723
Total net position 303,573,883
Noncurrent notes payable 2,070,132
Noncurrent bonds payable 18,400,154
Deferred inflows of resources 350,464
Unearned revenue 1,636,397
Capital asset additions 30,273
* Net Working Capital Calculation Amount
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 6,798,715
Restricted assets 5,700,074
Investments, short-term 8,410,790
Accounts receivable and accrued revenue 854,591
Accrued interest receivable 264,625
Loans receivable, current portion 72,549
Notes receivable, current portion 28,681,315
Lease receivable, current portion 100,618
Downpayment assistance, current portion 343,492
Prepaid expenses 393,691
Payables:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (620,671)
Notes payable, current portion (64,620)
Custodial reserve funds (241,129)
Other current liabilities (251,998)
Bonds payable and accrued interest on bonds, current portion (721,275)
Total net working capital $ 49,720,767
This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 86



Other
Supplemental Information

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 87



6¢

“UOYNQLAISIP [PUL2]XD A0f PapuadIul JOU ST pUD UOISSNISIP PUD M1ADA [DUALIUT AOf IfDAP D ST JUdUNIOP STY |

87,°087°86  $ awoou] 19N
961°T1€6 EIT°€TI’T €51°079°1 0S6°L¥Y S8L0OEI‘T $61°066° sosuadxy [e10],
68€76€T 0T6°01¥ ¥T6°L6L $88°8T1 1€5°26 6T1°796 sarmipuadxy LYo
000°096°1 - - - 000°8¥7L 000°TIT1 saimIpuadxy juein
8L0°819°F €61°TIL 6TTTT8 $96°90¢ 1S1°12T 0%6°S$S°T §1500) pae|oy [[0IAed pue saSeA ‘soLieles
6TL6EE - - 00S°C1 €01°69 9T1°8ST o[qeded sION pue spuog uo asuadxy Isaiu]
sasuadxyg
776°T65°L01 AN 437 LE6'TTY T 796°8S 970°98C°C SOLT6EE0T SONUAAY [B10],
916°6€E7'T 18€°LY T06°81%°1 796°8S SETLOL VeV LOT anuaAdy Funerd( 1ey10
1€1°89C°1 - - - 1€1°0ST1 000°81 SjuBID) QEIS PUB [RIOP]
L90°T61°901 - - - - L90°T61°901 swoou] Ajiure 9[3ulg
(6TTSIEY) - - - - (6TTSIEY) SJUSUIISIAU] JO dN[BA JTe] UT (35BAI0(]) dSBAIDU] JON
650800  § 1€6¥8€ $ <€y $ - 099°8C€ $ €€r’06TT  $ QWOOU] JUAWISIAU] PUB JSAIdIU]
SONUIAIY
[e10], Y0 JUQWISBURIA dSN/LDV AJwe| A[lwe|
EEN A d|3uls

TT0T ‘1€ ISnSny papuy Jeda X dp 104
ANANOY Aq SISUddXF pue SINUIAIY JO INPIAYDIS

uonea0dao) SuISNOH dqepI0JJV qNe)S SeXI |,

88



Federal and State Awards

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 89



Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters

Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors of
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Corporation™), as of and for the year
ended August 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Corporation’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 6, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,

or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 90



Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Corporation’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Corporation’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Austin, Texas

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 91



Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by
The Uniform Guidance and State of Texas Uniform Grant
Management Standards

The Board of Directors of
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation’s (the “Corporation”) compliance with
the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement
and State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards (“UGMS”) that could have a direct and
material effect on each of Corporation’s major federal and state programs for the year ended August 31,
2022. The Corporation’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Corporation complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
and state programs for the year ended August 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance™), and UGMS. Our responsibilities under
those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and UGMS are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Corporation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal and state program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Corporation’s
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 92



Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Corporation’s federal and state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Corporation’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform
Guidance, and UGMS will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Corporation’s compliance
with the requirements of each major federal and state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and UGMS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Corporation’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

¢ Obtain an understanding of the Corporation’s internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance and UGMS, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Corporation’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 93



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program
that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance and UGMS. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Austin, Texas

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 94



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Year Ended August 31, 2022

Federal or State Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor/ Assistance Listing Entity Identifying Total
Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Federal Awards
U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed through the Community Development Financial Institutions:
Capital Magnet Fund 21.011 181CM050456 $ 3,562,500
Capital Magnet Fund Administrative 21.011 181CM050456 35,105
Total 21.011 3,597,605
Total U.S. Department of Treasury 3,597,605
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Texas Department Health and Human Services Commission-
Money Follows the Person Rebalancing Demonstration-
Money Follows the Person 93.791 HHS000850100001 22.545
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 22,545
Total expenditures of federal awards 3,620,150
State Awards
Texas Health and Human Services Commission
Affordable Housing Partnership (AHP) n/a HHS000850100001 1,124,980
Total expenditures of state awards 1,124,980
Total expenditures of federal and state awards $ 4,745,130
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 95

45



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2022

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards (the “Schedule”) includes
the federal and state award activity of Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

(the “Corporation”) under programs of the federal and state government for the year ended
August 31, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform
Guidance™) and the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards (“UGMS”). Because
the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Corporation, it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, change in net assets, or cash flows of the
Corporation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The Schedule includes the federal and state activity of the Corporation and is presented on the
accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance and UGMS, where certain types of expenditures are not
allowed or are limited as to reimbursement. Therefore, some amounts presented in the Schedule
may differ from amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the financial statements.

The Corporation has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Included in the Schedule are balances at August 31, 2022 of loans from the Capital Magnet Fund
for the construction and remodeling of affordable low income housing projects. Uniform
Guidance requires that the Schedule include the total amount of federal awards expended for loan
or loan guarantee programs which include the value of new loans made or received during the year
plus the beginning of the period balance of loans from previous years for which the federal
government imposes continuing compliance requirements.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 96

46



Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2022

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued on whether the financial
statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal and State Awards
Internal control over the major federal and state programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Unmodified

Ll yes no

Ll yes none reported
Ll yes no

Ll yes no

(1 yes none reported

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for the major federal and state programs:

Capital Magnet Fund
Affordable Housing Partnership (AHP)

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) or UGMS?

Identification of the major federal and state programs:

Unmodified
Unmodified

[1yes

Xl no

Federal or State | Assistance Listing

Major Program Number Name of Federal or State Program
Federal 21.011 Capital Magnet Fund
State N/A - State Affordable Housing Partnership (AHP)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Federal type A and type B programs: $750,000

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between State type A and type B programs:  $300,000
Auditee qualified as Federal low-risk auditee? yes L no
Auditee qualified as State low-risk auditee? L] yes no

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 97

47




Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2022

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

No findings required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards for the years
ended August 31, 2022 and 2021.

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No findings or questioned costs required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) for the
years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021. No findings or questioned costs required to be reported in
accordance with UGMS for the year ended August 31, 2022. No state single audit was required under
UGMS for the year ended August 31, 2021.

This document is a draft for internal review and discussion and is not intended for external distribution. 98

48



Tab 3

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution
Regarding the Submission of One or More Applications for Allocation
of Private Activity Bonds to the Texas Bond Review Board for Qualified
Mortgage Revenue Bonds.

99



MINUTES AND CERTIFICATION

THE STATE OF TEXAS

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE
HOUSING CORPORATION

w W W W

I, the undersigned officer of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation, do hereby
certify as follows:

1. The Board of Directors of said corporation convened on December 6, 2022, at the
designated meeting place in Austin, Texas, and the roll was called of the duly constituted
members of said Board, to wit:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name Office
William H. Dietz Chairperson
Valerie Vargas Cardenas  Vice Chairperson
Courtney Johnson-Rose Director
Lemuel Williams Director
Andy Williams Director
and all of said persons were present during the meeting except , thus constituting a

quorum. Whereupon, among other business, the following was transacted, to-wit: a written
resolution (the “Resolution”) bearing the following caption was introduced:

RESOLUTION NO. 22-__
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

RESOLUTION Regarding the Submission of One or More Applications for
Allocation of Private Activity Bonds to the Texas Bond Review Board for
Qualified Mortgage Revenue Bonds

was duly introduced for the consideration of said Board. It was duly moved and seconded that
said Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said motion was adopted by the following
vote:

AYES NOES ABSTENTIONS

2. That a true, full and correct copy of the aforesaid Resolution adopted at the
meeting described in the above and foregoing paragraph is attached to and follows this certificate;
that said Resolution has been duly recorded in said Board's minutes of said meeting; that the
above and foregoing paragraph is a true, full and correct excerpt from said Board's minutes of
said meeting pertaining to the adoption of said Resolution; that the persons named in the above
and foregoing paragraph are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of said
Board as indicated therein; that each of the officers and members of said Board was duly and
sufficiently notified officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place and purpose of the
aforesaid meeting, and that said Resolution would be introduced and considered for adoption at
said meeting, and each of said officers and members consented, in advance, to the holding of
said meeting for such purpose.

100



SIGNED this December 6, 2022.

Secretary, Texas State Affordable Housing
Corporation

101



RESOLUTION NO. 22-_
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

RESOLUTION Regarding the Submission of One or More
Applications for Allocation of Private Activity Bonds to the Texas
Bond Review Board for Qualified Mortgage Revenue Bonds

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
(the “Corporation”) desires to submit one or more calendar year 2023 Applications for Allocation
of Private Activity Bonds (collectively, the “Application”) to the Texas Bond Review Board in
connection with qualified mortgage revenue bonds;

WHEREAS, the Board desires to make all other appropriate filings and requests to the
Texas Bond Review Board to enable the Corporation to issue qualified mortgage revenue bonds;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION:

1. That the President or Executive Vice President of the Corporation or any officer of the
Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Application to the Texas
Bond Review Board in connection with requesting allocation for qualified mortgage revenue bonds
in a maximum amount of $63,000,000, together with any documents, certificates or instruments
related thereto.

2. That the President or Executive Vice President of the Corporation is hereby authorized
and directed to take any and all other actions necessary or incidental to securing private activity
bond allocation and the approval of the qualified mortgage revenue bonds from the Texas Bond
Review Board.

3. That the President or Executive Vice President of the Corporation or any other officer
of the Corporation is hereby authorized and directed to file with the Texas Bond Review Board an
Exempt Issuer — State Debt Notice of Intent and any other documentation necessary or
appropriate in connection with requesting approval of qualified mortgage revenue bonds from the
Texas Bond Review Board.

PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 6™ day of December, 2022.

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

E I I S S

102



Tab 4

Presentation, Discussion and Possible Approval of a Resolution
Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds, Series 2023A (Non-AMT); Authorizing a Trust
Indenture, Official Statement, Bond Purchase Agreement and
Continuing Disclosure Agreement Relating to Such Bonds, Making
Certain Findings and Determinations; Authorizing the Execution of
Documents and Instruments Necessary or Convenient to Carry Out the
Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation Single Family Home Loan
Program Relating to Such Bonds; and Containing Other Matters Incident
and Related Thereto.

103



RESOLUTION NO.
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of Single
Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 2023A (Non-AMT);
Authorizing a Trust Indenture, Official Statement, Bond Purchase
Agreement and Continuing Disclosure Agreement Relating to Such
Bonds, Making Certain Findings and Determinations; Authorizing
the Execution of Documents and Instruments Necessary or
Convenient to Carry Out the Texas State Affordable Housing
Corporation Single Family Home Loan Program Relating to Such
Bonds; and Containing Other Matters Incident and Related Thereto

WHEREAS, the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Issuer”) has been duly
created and organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Non-Profit
Corporation Act, Article 1396-1.01 et seq. Vernon’s Annotated Texas Civil Statutes, as amended
(now codified as V.T.C.A. Business Organizations Code, Chapter 22, as amended) and under the
authority of Subchapter Y of Chapter 2306, Texas Government Code, as amended (the “Act”),
the Issuer is authorized to establish a program to provide adequate, safe and sanitary housing for
individuals and families of low, very low and extremely low income; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Issuer has determined to adopt and implement
a single family home loan program (the “Program”), a part of which will be financed with the
proceeds of the Bonds (as defined below) to provide eligible individuals and families of low income
meeting the requirements of the Act with home mortgage loans with low interest rates and/or
down payment and closing cost assistance in a format determined by the Issuer; and

WHEREAS, Section 103(a) and Section 143 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”) provide that the interest on obligations issued by or on behalf of a state or
a political subdivision thereof the proceeds of which are to be used to finance owner-occupied
residences shall be exempt from federal income taxation if such issue meets certain requirements
set forth in said Section 143 of the Code; and

WHEREAS, the Program has been designed to provide down payment and closing cost
assistance to eligible mortgagors; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer believes that the down payment and closing cost assistance and
the interest rate or rates associated with the mortgage loans will make the Program attractive to
potential mortgagors; and

WHEREAS, in order to carry out the Program, the Board of Directors of the Issuer has
determined that the Issuer shall issue its Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 2023A
(Non-AMT) (the “Bonds”), in the maximum aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
$63,000,000 pursuant to and as generally described in a Trust Indenture prepared in connection
with the issuance of the Bonds (the “Indenture”), by and between the Issuer and the Trustee,
thereby making funds available for acquiring GNMA Certificates, all under and in accordance with
the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer further proposes to sell the Bonds, upon the issuance thereof, to
Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (the “Purchaser”), all as referenced in the Bond Purchase
Agreement between the Issuer and the Purchaser (the “Purchase Agreement”); and

104



WHEREAS, the Board has determined to authorize the investment of all or a portion of
the proceeds of the Bonds and any other amounts held under the Indenture with respect to the
Bonds in investments permitted by the Indenture, including the investment in one or more
investment agreements on or after the closing date or such other investments as the authorized
representatives named herein may approve; and

WHEREAS, there have been presented to the Issuer proposed forms of each of the
following and all of which comprise a part of this Resolution:

1. the Indenture;

2. the Continuing Disclosure Agreement by and between the Issuer and the
Trustee (the “Disclosure Agreement”);

3. the Bond Purchase Agreement; and

4, the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds (the “Preliminary

Official Statement”).

WHEREAS, the Issuer finds the form and substance of the above-listed documents
(hereinafter, collectively the “Bond Documents”) to be satisfactory and proper and finds the
recitals with regard to the Issuer contained therein to be true, correct and complete and hereby
determines to proceed with the issuance and sale of the Bonds to carry out the Program, the
execution of such documents and the taking of such other actions as may be necessary and
appropriate in connection therewith;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION:

Section 1. Approval of Program. That the Issuer hereby expresses its intent to
implement the Program under which the Trustee, on behalf of the Issuer, will acquire GNMA
Certificates backed by mortgages on residences in the State of Texas owned and occupied by
eligible individuals and families of low income.

Section 2. Public Purposes of Program and Bonds. That the Issuer hereby finds,
determines, recites and declares that the adoption and implementation of the Program, including
the down payment and closing cost assistance and the interest rate or rates to be borne by the
mortgage loans, and the issuance of the Bonds will promote the public purposes set forth in the
Act, including, without limitation, assisting eligible individuals and families of low income in
acquiring and owning adequate, safe and sanitary housing.

Section 3. Issuance, Execution and Delivery of the Bonds. That the issuance of the
Bonds in one or more series in the maximum aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
$63,000,000 is hereby authorized, all under and in accordance with the Indenture, and that, upon
execution and delivery of the Indenture, the officers of the Issuer are each hereby authorized to
execute and attest the Bonds and to deliver the Bonds to the Trustee for authentication all as
provided in the Indenture. The Bonds shall mature on the dates and in the principal amounts,
shall bear interest at the rates and shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the date or
dates and in the amounts as specified in the Indenture.

Section 4. Approval, Execution and Delivery of the Indenture. That the Indenture, in
substantially the form and substance as presented to the Board of Directors at the meeting at

105



which this Resolution was considered, with such changes or additions thereto as may be
approved by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President or Executive Vice President of the
Issuer (upon the advice of bond counsel to the Issuer), as evidenced by the execution of the
Indenture by said Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President or Executive Vice President, is
hereby approved and that the proper officers of the Issuer are each hereby authorized and
directed to execute and attest the Indenture and to deliver the Indenture to the Trustee.

Section 5. Purchase Agreement and Sale of Bonds. That the Purchase Agreement,
in substantially the form and substance as presented to the Board of Directors at the meeting at
which this Resolution was considered, with such changes or additions thereto as may be
approved by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President or Executive Vice President of the
Issuer (upon the advice of bond counsel to the Issuer), as evidenced by the execution of the
Purchase Agreement by said Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President or Executive Vice
President, is hereby approved and that the proper officers of the Issuer are each hereby
authorized and directed to execute the Purchase Agreement and to deliver the Purchase
Agreement to the Purchaser. That the sale and delivery of the Bonds to the Purchaser, upon the
terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement between the Issuer and the Purchaser
is hereby authorized and approved. The Bonds shall be sold to the Purchaser at the purchase
price specified in the Purchase Agreement. The Issuer hereby authorizes the Chairperson, Vice
Chairperson, President or Executive Vice President of the Issuer, either individually or in any
combination of such officers, for and on behalf of the Issuer, to determine the actual Purchaser
and the terms of the Purchase Agreement. Upon execution by the parties thereto and delivery
thereof, the Purchase Agreement shall be binding upon the Issuer in accordance with the terms
and provisions thereof. In addition, the officers of the Issuer are each authorized and directed to
execute any necessary certificates evidencing approval of any or all of the matters set forth in this
Section 5. In the event it becomes necessary to engage any other investment banking firm or
investment banking firms to assist in the sale of the Bonds, the President or the Executive Vice
President of the Issuer shall be and hereby is authorized to engage the services of any such
investment banking firm or firms.

Section 6. Approval, Execution and Delivery of the Disclosure Agreement. That the
Disclosure Agreement, in substantially the form and substance of the Disclosure Agreement
presented to the Board of Directors at the meeting at which this Resolution was considered, with
such changes or additions thereto as may be approved by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson,
President or Executive Vice President of the Issuer (upon the advice of bond counsel to the
Issuer), as evidenced by the execution of the Disclosure Agreement by said Chairperson, Vice
Chairperson, President or Executive Vice President, is hereby approved and that the proper
officers of the Issuer are each hereby authorized and directed to execute and attest the Disclosure
Agreement and to deliver the Disclosure Agreement to the Trustee.

Section 7. Approval, Execution, Use and Distribution of Offering Document. That the
Preliminary Official Statement, in substantially the form and substance of the Preliminary Official
Statement presented to the Board of Directors at the meeting at which this Resolution was
considered, and the changes to the Preliminary Official Statement which will result in the final
Official Statement proposed to be delivered in connection with the sale of the Bonds (the “Official
Statement”), in substantially the form and substance approved by the Chairperson, Vice
Chairperson, President or Executive Vice President of the Issuer (upon advice of bond counsel
to the Issuer) as evidenced by their execution thereof, are hereby approved and the Chairperson,
Vice Chairperson, President and Executive Vice President of the Issuer are each, individually,
hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the Issuer, to execute the Preliminary Official

106



Statement and the Official Statement. Delivery to the Purchaser of the Preliminary Official
Statement and the Official Statement is hereby authorized.

Section 8. Execution and Delivery of Other Documents. That the officers of the Issuer
are each hereby authorized to consent to, accept, execute and attest such other agreements,
including investment agreements, assignments, bonds, certificates, contracts, documents,
instruments, releases, financing statements, offering documents, letters of instruction, written
requests and other papers, whether or not mentioned herein, as may be necessary or convenient
to carry out or assist in carrying out the purposes of this Resolution, the Program and the
issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds.

Section 9. Power to Revise Form of Documents. That, notwithstanding any other
provision of this Resolution, the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President, Executive Vice
President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Issuer are
each hereby authorized to make or approve such revisions in the form of the Bond Documents
as, in the opinion of counsel to the Issuer or bond counsel, may be necessary or convenient to
carry out or assist in carrying out the purposes of this Resolution and the Program.

Section 10.  Appointment of Trustee. Computershare Trust Company, N.A. is hereby
appointed as Trustee and paying agent under the terms of the Indenture for the Bonds. If said
bank shall be unable or unwilling to so serve, the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President or
Executive Vice President of the Issuer is hereby authorized and directed to designate a
commercial bank or other entity with trust powers acceptable to it to serve as Trustee and paying
agent.

Section 11.  Delegation to President or Executive Vice President. The President and
Executive Vice President of the Issuer, either individually or jointly, are hereby authorized to
approve the principal amounts and maturities of the Bonds to be issued pursuant to this
Resolution, to approve the interest rate or rates to be borne by the Bonds, provided, however,
that the interest rate shall never exceed 15% per annum and to determine the interest rates and
down payment assistance and closing cost amounts for the mortgage loans, provided however,
that no mortgage loan interest rate shall exceed 10% per annum. The President and Executive
Vice President of the Issuer, either individually or jointly, are further authorized to engage the
services of consultants that may be needed, in the opinion of such officer, to fully complete the
issuance and delivery of the Bonds.

Section 12.  Reimbursement of Expenditures; Official Intent. The Issuer wishes to
declare its intent to issue the Bonds and use Bond proceeds to reimburse itself to the extent it
has previously used its funds to purchase mortgage-backed securities backed by mortgage loans.
This Resolution shall constitute the Issuer’s declaration of official intent under Treas.
Reg. § 1.150-2. The maximum principal amount of Bonds expected to be issued is set forth in
this Resolution.

Section 13.  Ratification of Certain Prior Actions. That all prior actions taken by or on
behalf of the Issuer in connection with the Program and the Bonds, are hereby authorized, ratified,
confirmed and approved.

Section 14.  Purposes of Resolution. That the Board of Directors of the Issuer has
expressly determined and hereby confirms that the issuance of the Bonds and the implementation
of the Program accomplish a valid public purpose of the Issuer by assisting eligible individuals
and families of low income in the State of Texas to obtain adequate, safe and sanitary housing,

107



thereby promoting the public health, welfare and safety for individuals and families of low income
in the State of Texas.

Section 15.  Limited Obligations. That the Bonds and the interest thereon shall be
limited obligations of the Issuer payable solely from the revenues, funds and assets pledged under
the Indenture to secure payment of the Bonds and under no circumstances shall the Bonds be
payable from any other revenues, funds, assets or income of the Issuer.

Section 16.  Obligations of Issuer Only. That the Bonds and the interest thereon shall
not constitute an indebtedness, liability, general, special or moral obligation or a pledge or loan of
the faith or credit or taxing power, within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision
whatsoever, of the State of Texas or any other political subdivision or governmental unit of the
State of Texas.

Section 17.  Conflicting Prior Actions. That all orders, resolutions, or any actions or
parts thereof of the Board of Directors of the Issuer in conflict herewith are hereby expressly
repealed to the extent of any such conflict.

Section 18.  Authorization of Investment. That the Board of Directors of the Issuer
hereby authorizes the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, President or Executive Vice President of
the Issuer to direct the Trustee to invest any funds received by the Trustee pursuant to the
Indenture in Investment Securities as defined in the Indenture.

Section 19.  Incorporation of Findings and Determinations.  The findings and
determinations of the Issuer contained in the preamble hereof are hereby incorporated by
reference and made a part of this Resolution for all purposes as if the same were restated in full
in this Section.

Section 20.  Effective Date. That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from
and upon its adoption.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

108



PASSED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this December 6, 2022.

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING
CORPORATION

Chairperson
ATTEST:

Secretary

109



$
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Series 2023A (Tax-Exempt)

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT

February _ , 2023

Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation
6701 Shirley Avenue
Austin, Texas 78752

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On the basis of the representations, warranties and covenants contained herein, and the
terms and conditions contained herein, Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (the “Underwriter”),
offers to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement (this “Purchase Agreement’), relating to the
above-captioned bonds (the *““Bonds’), with Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the
“Issuer’’), which Purchase Agreement will become binding upon the Issuer and the Underwriter
upon your acceptance by execution of this Purchase Agreement and its delivery to the Underwriter
at or prior to 5:00 p.m., Central time, not later than February __, 2023.

The Issuer acknowledges and agrees that (i) the purchase and sale of the Bonds pursuant
to this Purchase Agreement is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the Issuer and the
Underwriter, (ii) in connection with such transaction, the Underwriter is acting solely as a principal
and not as an agent or a fiduciary of the Issuer; (iii) the Underwriter has not assumed a fiduciary
responsibility in favor of the Issuer with respect to the offering of the Bonds or the process leading
thereto (whether or not the Underwriter, or any affiliate of the Underwriter, has advised or is
currently advising the Issuer on other matters) nor has it assumed any other obligation to the Issuer
except the obligations expressly set forth in this Purchase Agreement; (iv) the Underwriter has
financial and other interests that differ from those of the Issuer; and (v) the Issuer has consulted
with its legal counsel and financial advisors to the extent it deemed appropriate in connection with
the offering and sale of the Bonds.

1. Introduction. The Issuer will issue its Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds,
Series 2023A, in the aggregate principal amount of $ , pursuant to Subchapter Y of
Chapter 2306 of the Texas Government Code, as amended (the *“Act”), the Resolution (defined
below) and a Trust Indenture dated as of February 1, 2023 (the “Indenture’), between the Issuer
and Computershare Trust Company, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee’”). The Bonds
will be issued to provide funds to finance mortgage loans (*“Mortgage Loans™) secured by
mortgages on single family residences located within the State of Texas under the applicable terms
of the Corporation’s loan program for individuals and families of low income (the “Program”).

110



The financing of the Mortgage Loans will occur through the purchase by the Trustee (on behalf of
the Issuer) of pass-through certificates backed by the Mortgage Loans from moneys on deposit in
the Program Fund established under the Indenture for the Bonds, which certificates will be
guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”) (the “Certificates”).

2. Purchase, Sale and Delivery of Bonds. On the basis of the representations and
agreements contained herein, but subject to the terms and conditions herein set forth, the
Underwriter hereby agrees to purchase from the Issuer, and the Issuer hereby agrees to sell to the
Underwriter, the Bonds at an aggregate purchase price equal to $ (which is the sum of
$ , the total initial principal amount of the Bonds, [plus/less a [net] original issue
[premium/discount] of $ )]. The Bonds will bear interest from their date of delivery,
and therefore no accrued interest will be paid as part of the purchase price.

The Bonds will mature on the dates and in the aggregate principal amounts, and bear
interest at the rates per annum, shown on Schedule I. The Issuer shall pay on the Closing Date to
the Underwriter $ (the ““Underwriter’s Fee”) for the Underwriter’s fees and expenses.

The Issuer will deliver the Bonds to the Underwriter against payment of the purchase price
therefor by wire transfer payable in immediately available funds to the Trustee. The closing will
occur at the offices of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Bond Counsel, at 10:00 a.m., Central time,
on February _ , 2023, or at such other time or place as the Issuer and the Underwriter shall
mutually agree upon (such time being referred to herein as the “Closing Date’”). The Bonds shall
be delivered in definitive fully registered form, in each case in such form as shall comply with the
book-entry system requirements of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York.

3. Transaction Documents. At or prior to the Closing Date, the Issuer shall deliver to
the Underwriter the following documents in form and substance satisfactory to the Underwriter:

(@ a copy of the resolution adopted by the Issuer on December 6, 2022,
approving the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds (the ““Resolution”);

(b)  acopy of the executed Indenture;

(c) a copy of the executed Servicing and Sale Agreement dated as of
February 1, 2019 (the “Servicing Agreement”), between the Issuer and Lakeview Loan
Servicing, LLC (the ““Servicer™);

(d) acopy of the form of Mortgage Origination Agreement between the Issuer
and each financial institution participating in the Program as a lender (each a ““Lender”’),
and a copy of the Amendment (Relating to Bond-Financed Programs) thereto dated as of
March 1, 2019, executed by the Issuer and delivered to each Lender (collectively, the
“Lender Agreements”™);

() a copy of the executed Continuing Disclosure Agreement dated as of
February 1, 2023 (the *““Continuing Disclosure Agreement”); and

111



()  acopy of the Official Statement (defined below) of the Issuer relating to the
Bonds duly executed on behalf of the Issuer by the President or other duly authorized
representative of the Issuer.

The Issuer confirms that it has heretofore made available to the Underwriter copies of the
Preliminary Official Statement dated January __, 2023, relating to the Bonds (the “Preliminary
Official Statement™) and has approved the distribution thereof to prospective underwriters and
investors. The Issuer hereby represents to the Underwriter that the Preliminary Official Statement
was deemed by the Issuer to be “final” as of its date within the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12(b) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

The Issuer authorizes, ratifies and consents to the use of the Preliminary Official Statement
by the Underwriter in connection with the Issuer’s offer, sale and distribution of the Bonds.

Upon the request of the Underwriter (which request shall be made no later than seven (7)
business days following the date hereof), the Issuer will deliver to the Underwriter three (3) copies
of the Preliminary Official Statement and completed with the information permitted to be omitted
therefrom by Rule 15¢2-12(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and such other
amendments or supplements as shall have been approved by the Issuer and the Underwriter (the
“Preliminary Official Statement,” as so completed, being hereinafter referred to as the “Official
Statement”™) duly executed on behalf of the Issuer.

The Issuer approves, and the Underwriter consents to, the delivery of the Preliminary
Official Statement and the Official Statement in electronic form.

This Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the Servicing Agreement, the Lender Agreements
and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement are referred to herein collectively as the ““Issuer
Agreements.”

4. Representations and Warranties. The Issuer represents and warrants to the
Underwriter as follows:

(@) itisanon-profit corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Texas (the ““State’’), and has full legal right, power and authority (i) to enter
into this Purchase Agreement (i) to execute and deliver the Issuer Agreements, (iii) to sell,
issue and deliver the Bonds to the Underwriter as provided herein, (iv) to use the proceeds
of the Bonds to purchase the Certificates and for other purposes described in the Indenture
and (v) to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Issuer Agreements and the
Official Statement;

(b)  the information set forth in the Official Statement under the captions “THE
ISSUER” and “No LITIGATION” does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained therein, in
light of the circumstances under which they were made not misleading;

112



(c) itis not in breach of or default under any applicable law or administrative
regulation of the State, the United States or any applicable judgment or decree or any
payment default with respect to any obligations, in each case, where such default would
have a material adverse effect on its ability to perform its obligations hereunder or under
the Issuer Agreements; and the execution and delivery of the Issuer Agreements and the
Bonds, and the compliance with the provisions thereof, do not conflict with or constitute a
material breach of or default under any law, administrative regulation, judgment, decree,
loan agreement, note, resolution, agreement or other instrument to which the Issuer is a
party or to which it or any of its property is otherwise subject;

(d) all material approvals, consents and orders of any governmental entity of
the State or the United States having jurisdiction which would constitute conditions
precedent to the performance by the Issuer of its obligations under the Issuer Agreements
and the Bonds have been or will be obtained prior to the Closing Date;

(e) to the best of its knowledge, the terms and provisions of the Issuer
Agreements comply in all material respects with the requirements of the Act; and the Issuer
Agreements and the Bonds, when executed and delivered by the Issuer, will constitute its
valid, legal and binding obligations enforceable in accordance with their terms, except as
the enforceability thereof may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other
similar law affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by public policy
considerations which may render the Issuer Agreements or the Bonds unenforceable, and
subject to the availability of equitable remedies generally;

(F)  there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in
equity, before or by any court, public board or body, pending or, to the knowledge of the
Issuer, threatened against it affecting its existence or its governing body or the titles of its
officers to their respective offices or seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the delivery of
the Bonds or the revenues or assets pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest
on the Bonds, or the pledge of such revenue or assets, the purchase of the Certificates, or
in any way contesting or affecting the validity or enforceability of the Bonds or the Issuer
Agreements, or contesting in any way the completeness or accuracy the Official Statement,
or contesting its powers or any authority for the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or the
execution and delivery of the Issuer Agreements;

(g) any certificate signed by one of its authorized officers and delivered to the
Underwriter or the Trustee at or prior to the Closing Date shall be deemed a representation
by it in connection with this Purchase Agreement to the Underwriter or the Trustee as to
the statements made therein;

(h)  the Bonds, when issued, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the
Indenture and sold to the Underwriter as provided herein, will be the Issuer’s validly issued
and outstanding limited obligations entitled to the benefits of the Indenture;

(i)  the Issuer will apply, or cause to be applied, the proceeds from the sale of
the Bonds as provided in and subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Resolution

113



and the Indenture, and will not to take or omit to take any action which action or omission
will adversely affect the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of
the interest on the Bonds; and

(J)) to the best of its knowledge, the Issuer has not failed to comply, in all
material respects, with any continuing disclosure undertaking during the five-year period
preceding the date of the Official Statement.

The Issuer agrees that all representations and covenants made by it herein, and in securities,
agreements or other instruments delivered pursuant hereto or in connection herewith, shall be
deemed to have been relied upon by the Underwriter, and that all representations and covenants
made by the Issuer herein and therein and all the Underwriter’s rights hereunder and thereunder
shall survive the delivery of the Bonds.

5. Covenants. The Issuer covenants with the Underwriter that:

(@) if between the date of this Purchase Agreement and the date ninety (90) days
following the end of the underwriting period (as such term is defined in Rule 15¢2-12(e)(2)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which may be assumed by the Issuer to be the
Closing Date unless otherwise notified by the Underwriter) an event occurs affecting the
Issuer, or any transaction contemplated by the Issuer Agreements, which could cause the
Official Statement to contain an untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a
material fact which should be included therein for the purposes for which the Official
Statement was to be used or which is necessary in order to make the statements therein, in
the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and, if in the
opinion of the Issuer or the Underwriter such event requires an amendment or supplement
to such Official Statement, the Issuer will change, amend or supplement the Official
Statement in a form and in a manner reasonably acceptable to the Underwriter and at the
reasonable expense of the Issuer and/or the Underwriter as shall be mutually agreed;
provided, however, if such event shall occur on or prior to the Closing Date, the
Underwriter, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to terminate its obligations hereunder
by written notice to the Issuer, and the Underwriter shall be under no obligation to purchase
and pay for the Bonds; and

(b)  the Issuer, at no expense to the Issuer, will furnish such information, execute
such instruments and take such other action in cooperation with the Underwriter as the
Underwriter may reasonably request to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue
Sky or other securities laws and regulations of such states and other jurisdictions of the
United States as the Underwriter may designate; provided, however, the Issuer shall not be
required to register as a dealer or broker in any such state or jurisdiction nor shall it be
required to consent to the jurisdiction of such state or jurisdiction.

6. Establishment of Issue Price. (a) The Underwriter agrees to assist the Issuer in
establishing the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Issuer at the Closing
Date an “issue price” or similar certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent
communications, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, with such modifications

114



as may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, the Issuer and
Bond Counsel, to accurately reflect, as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering
price or prices to the public of the Bonds.

(b) Except as otherwise set forth in Schedule | attached hereto, the Issuer will treat the
first price or prices at which 10% of each maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (the “10%
Test™) as the issue price of that maturity. At or promptly after the execution of this Purchase
Agreement, the Underwriter shall report to the Issuer the price or prices at which it has sold to the
public each maturity of Bonds. If at that time the 10% Test has not been satisfied as to any maturity
of the Bonds, the Underwriter agrees to promptly report to the Issuer the prices at which it sells
the Bonds of that maturity to the public. That reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not
the Closing Date has occurred, until either (i) the Underwriter has sold all Bonds of that maturity
or (ii) the 10% Test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the
Underwriter’s reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at reasonable periodic intervals
or otherwise upon request of the Issuer or Bond Counsel. For purposes of this section 6(b), if
Bonds mature on the same date but have different interest rates, each separate CUSIP number
within that maturity will be treated as a separate maturity of the Bonds.

(¢) The Underwriter confirms that Underwriter offered the Bonds to the public on or
before the date of this Purchase Agreement at the offering price or prices (the *“Initial Offering
Price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in Schedule | attached hereto, except as
otherwise set forth therein. Schedule I also sets forth, as of the date of this Purchase Agreement,
the maturities, if any, of the Bonds for which the 10% Test has not been satisfied and for which
the Issuer and the Underwriter agree that the restrictions set forth in the next sentence shall apply,
which will allow the Issuer to treat the initial offering price to the public of each such maturity as
of the sale date as the issue price of that maturity (the “Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule”). So long
as the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule remains applicable to any maturity of the Bonds, the
Underwriter will neither offer nor sell unsold Bonds of that maturity to any person at a price that
is higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public during the period starting on the sale date and
ending on the earlier of the following:

(1) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or

(2)  the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of that maturity of
the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the Initial Offering Price to the
public.

The Underwriter will advise the Issuer promptly after the close of the fifth (5th) business
day after the sale date whether it has sold 10% of that maturity of the Bonds to the public at a price
that is no higher than the Initial Offering Price to the public.

(d) The Underwriter confirms that:

(i) any selling group agreement and any third-party distribution agreement

relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires,
contains or will contain language obligating each dealer who is a member of the selling

115



group and each broker-dealer that is a party to such third-party distribution agreement, as
applicable:

(A) (i) toreport the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds
of each maturity allocated to it, whether or not the Closing Date has occurred, until
either all Bonds of that maturity allocated to it have been sold or it is notified by
the Underwriter that the 10% Test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that
maturity, provided that, the reporting obligation after the Closing Date may be at
reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request of the Underwriter, and
(i) to comply with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable, if and for so
long as directed by the Underwriter,

(B)  to promptly notify the Underwriter of any sales of Bonds that, to its
knowledge, are made to a purchaser who is a related party to an underwriter
participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (each such term being used
as defined below), and

(C) to acknowledge that, unless otherwise advised by the dealer or
broker-dealer, the Underwriter shall assume that each order submitted by the dealer
or broker-dealer is a sale to the public.

(i) any selling group agreement relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the
public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating
each dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution agreement to be employed in
connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to the public to require each broker-dealer that
IS a party to such third-party distribution agreement to (A) report the prices at which it sells
to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allocated to it, whether or not the Closing
Date has occurred, until either all Bonds of that maturity allocated to it have been sold or
it is notified by the Underwriter or the dealer that the 10% test has been satisfied as to the
Bonds of that maturity, provided that, the reporting obligation after the Closing Date may
be at reasonable periodic intervals or otherwise upon request of the Underwriter or the
dealer, and (B) comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, if and for so
long as directed by the Underwriter or the dealer and as set forth in the related pricing
wires.

(e) The Issuer acknowledges that, in making the representations set forth in this section,

the Underwriter will rely on (i) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with
the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the
selling group to comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including,
but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable
to the Bonds, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing wires, and (ii) in the
event that a third-party distribution agreement was employed in connection with the initial sale of
the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such agreement to
comply with the requirements for establishing issue price of the Bonds, including, but not limited
to, its agreement to comply with the Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable to the Bonds, as
set forth in the third-party distribution agreement and the related pricing wires. The Issuer further

116



acknowledges that the Underwriter shall not be liable for the failure of any dealer who is a member
of a selling group, or of any broker-dealer that is a party to a third-party distribution agreement, to
comply with its corresponding agreement to comply with the requirements for establishing issue
price of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, its agreement to comply with the
Hold-The-Offering-Price Rule, if applicable to the Bonds.

() The Underwriter acknowledges that sales of any Bonds to any person that is a related
party to an underwriter participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (each such term
being used as defined below) shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this section.
Further, for purposes of this section:

(1)  “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party;

(i) ““underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract with the Issuer (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees
pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling
group or a party to a third-party distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of
the Bonds to the public);

(ili)  apurchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter if the
underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (A) more than 50%
common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are
corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (B) more than
50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are
partnerships (including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (C) more than
50% common ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the
capital interests or profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a
corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the
applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other); and

(iv)  **sale date” means the date of execution of this Purchase Agreement by all
parties.

7. Conditions to Obligations of Underwriter. The obligation of the Underwriter to
purchase and pay for the Bonds at the Closing Date is subject to the accuracy of the representations
of the Issuer herein as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, to the material accuracy of
statements to be made on behalf of the Issuer hereunder, to the material performance by the Issuer
of its obligations hereunder and to the following additional conditions precedent:

(@) at the Closing Date, the Resolution, the Issuer Agreements, the Bonds and
all official action of the Issuer relating thereto, shall be in full force and effect and shall not
have been amended, modified or supplemented, except as may have been agreed to in
writing by the Underwriter, and the Official Statement shall have been executed and shall

117



not have been amended or supplemented except as may have been agreed to by the
Underwriter;

(b)  the Issuer shall have received the approving opinion of Norton Rose
Fulbright US LLP, Bond Counsel, in form acceptable to the Issuer and the Underwriter;

(c) the Underwriter shall have received the supplemental opinion of Norton
Rose Fulbright US LLP, Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the Issuer,
the Underwriter and the Trustee, to the effect that: (i) the Bonds constitute exempted
securities within the meaning of Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the ““Securities Act”), and the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the “Trust
Indenture Act™), and that it is not necessary, in connection with the offering and sale of the
Bonds, to register any securities under the Securities Act or to qualify the Indenture under
the Trust Indenture Act; (ii) the Bonds, the Indenture, the Lender Agreements, the
Servicing Agreement, and certain provisions of federal tax law conform to the descriptions
thereof contained in the Official Statement, and the statements contained in the Official
Statement on the cover and under the captions “INTRODUCTION,” “THE BONDS,” “SECURITY
FOR THE BONDS,” “FLOW OF FUNDS,” “THE PROGRAM,” “THE INDENTURE,” “THE LENDER
AGREEMENTS,” “THE SERVICING AGREEMENT,” “TAX MATTERS,” “ELIGIBILITY FOR
INVESTMENT” and “Appendix A—DEFINITIONS,” insofar as such statements purport to
summarize certain provisions of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Lender Agreements and the
Servicing Agreement, federal tax law provisions relating to the Bonds, and the eligibility
for investment under Texas law, present a fair and accurate summary of such provisions;
(iii) the Issuer is empowered to acquire the Certificates to provide financing for single
family residences in accordance with the Indenture and to assign the Certificates and other
pledged revenues from which the Bonds are payable; (iv) the Indenture creates a valid
pledge of the Trust Estate (as defined in the Indenture), the Certificates and money,
securities and property held in any fund or account established pursuant to the Indenture
(excluding amounts contained in the Cost of Issuance Fund and any Rebate Amount),
including the investment thereof, and a first lien upon, security interest in and assignment
to the Trustee of the same, and all right, title and interest of the Issuer in the Certificates,
the Lender Agreements and the Servicing Agreement and subject in all cases to the
provisions of the Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the
terms and conditions set forth therein; and (v) all approvals, consents, authorizations,
elections and orders of or filings or registrations with any governmental authority, board,
agency or commission (except state securities commissions) having jurisdiction which
would constitute a condition precedent to, or the absence of which would materially
adversely affect, the performance by the Issuer of its obligations under the Bonds, the
Indenture, the Lender Agreements, the Servicing Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement and this Purchase Agreement, have been obtained and are in full force and
effect;

(d) the Underwriter shall have received an opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright
US LLP, counsel to the Issuer, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the Issuer, the
Underwriter and the Trustee to the effect that: (i) this Purchase Agreement has been duly
authorized, executed and delivered by, and constitutes a legally valid and binding

118



agreement enforceable in accordance with its terms of, the Issuer except as enforcement
may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws or equitable
principles relating to or limiting creditors’ rights generally, and provided that no opinion
need be expressed as to the availability of equitable remedies; (ii) the Issuer is a duly
organized and existing non-profit corporation, duly organized and existing under the
Constitution and laws of the State, acting pursuant to the Act, with full legal right, power
and authority to issue the Bonds and to perform all of its obligations under the Bonds, the
Resolution and the Issuer Agreements, and the same are now in full force and effect, and
the Issuer has duly adopted the Resolution and has duly authorized, executed and delivered
the Bonds, the Issuer Agreements and the Official Statement, and (assuming due
authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties thereto, where necessary) the
Issuer Agreements constitute legal, valid and binding agreements of the Issuer enforceable
in accordance with their terms (except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization or similar laws or equitable principles relating to or limiting
creditors’ rights generally, and provided that no opinion need be expressed as to the
availability of equitable remedies); and (iii) the adoption of the Resolution, and the
execution and delivery of the Bonds and the Issuer Agreements and the other instruments
contemplated by any of such documents to which the Issuer is a party, and compliance with
the provisions of each thereof, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default
under any applicable law or administrative rule or regulation of the State, the United States
of America, or of any department, division, agency or instrumentality of either thereof, or
any applicable court or administrative decree or order or, to its knowledge, any loan
agreement, note, ordinance, resolution, indenture, contract, agreement or other instrument
to which the Issuer is a party or is otherwise subject or bound,;

(e) the Underwriter shall have received a certificate, dated the Closing Date and
signed by an authorized officer of the Trustee (or an opinion of counsel to the Trustee as
to one or more of such matters addressed to the Issuer and the Underwriter), to the effect
that: (i) the Trustee is a national banking association, duly organized, validly existing and
in good standing under the laws of the United States, is duly qualified to do business and
to exercise trust powers in the State and in all jurisdictions where the nature of its operations
as contemplated by the Indenture legally requires such qualification, and has the corporate
power to take all action required or permitted of it under the Indenture (including actions
required or permitted of it under the Continuing Disclosure Agreement; (ii) the execution,
delivery and performance by the Trustee of the Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, and its acknowledgment of certain provisions of the Servicing Agreement,
have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Trustee, and
under present law do not and will not contravene the charter or by-laws of the Trustee or
conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any law, administrative regulation,
consent decree or any agreement or instrument to which the Trustee is subject; (iii) all
approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority or agency having jurisdiction
in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the performance by the
Trustee of its duties and obligations under the Indenture and its duties and obligations
(including its duties and obligations as Dissemination Agent) under the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement have been obtained and are in full force and effect; (iv) the
Indenture and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement have been duly entered into and

119



delivered by the Trustee and constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the
Trustee, enforceable against the Trustee in accordance with their terms, except as the
enforceability thereof may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally or by general equity
principles; (v) the Trustee has taken all action necessary for the acceptance of, and has duly
accepted the office of, Trustee under the Indenture and has the requisite trust powers to
carry out its obligations under the Indenture; and (vi) no litigation has been served on the
Trustee or, to the knowledge of such officer, threatened in any way contesting or affecting
the existence of powers (including trust powers) of the Trustee or the Trustee’s ability to
fulfill its duties and obligations under the Indenture and its duties and obligations
(including its duties and obligations as Dissemination Agent) under the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement;

(F)  the Underwriter shall have received a certificate, dated the Closing Date and
signed by an authorized representative of the Issuer, to the effect that: (i) neither the
adoption of the Resolution or the execution or delivery by the Issuer of the Bonds or the
Issuer Agreements, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, will
result in the material violation of any constitutional provisions, statute, regulation or
ordinance applicable to the Issuer or conflict with any indenture, loan agreement, bond,
note, ordinance, resolution, contract, agreement or other instrument to which the Issuer is
a party or, to the knowledge of the Issuer, is otherwise subject or bound; (ii) no material
consent, approval, authorization, license or order of any governmental agency or body is
required for the execution and delivery by the Issuer of, or performance by the Issuer of its
obligations under, the Issuer Agreements, except such consents, approvals, authorizations,
licenses or orders as already have been obtained and except such consents, approvals,
authorizations, licenses or orders as may be required by the Attorney General of the State
of Texas or under the state securities or “blue sky” laws of any jurisdiction in connection
with the offer and sale of the Bonds; (iii) no litigation or other proceeding is pending or, to
the knowledge of the Issuer, threatened in any state or federal court or other tribunal of
competent jurisdiction, in any material way: (a) restraining or enjoining the issuance, sale
or delivery of the Bonds; (b) questioning or affecting the validity of the Resolution, the
Issuer Agreements, the Bonds, the collection, application and pledge to the Bondholders
of any moneys or other security provided for the payment of the Bonds under the Indenture,
and Lender Agreements or the Servicing Agreement, or any other transaction referred to
in the Official Statement; (c) questioning or affecting the validity of any of the proceedings
for the authorization, sale, execution, issuance or delivery of the Bonds; (d) questioning or
affecting the organization or existence of the Issuer or the title to office of any officer
thereof; (e) questioning or affecting the power and authority of the Issuer to issue the Bonds
or to execute and deliver the Issuer Agreements; (f) questioning the accuracy or
completeness of the Official Statement; or (g) which would adversely affect the exclusion
from gross income of interest paid on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes; (iv) the
Issuer has complied with or will on the Closing Date be in compliance with all the material
agreements and satisfied all the material conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied
at or prior to the Closing Date, and the representations of the Issuer as to all material facts
contained herein and in the Issuer Agreements are true, complete and correct as of the
Closing Date; and (v) the statements and information contained in the Official Statement

120



under the captions “THE ISSUER” and “No LITIGATION” with respect to the Issuer do not
contain any untrue statements of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary
in order to make the statements contained therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading; and (vi) to its knowledge, the Issuer has not failed
to comply, in all material respects, with any continuing disclosure undertaking during the
five-year period preceding the date of the Official Statement;

() the Underwriter shall have received a certificate or agreement of the Issuer
concerning arbitrage and certain other federal income tax matters, dated the Closing Date
and signed by an authorized officer of the Issuer, in form and substance satisfactory to
Bond Counsel;

(h)  the Underwriter shall have received an opinion of Ballard Spahr LLP, as
Disclosure Counsel, dated the Closing Date and addressed to the Issuer and the
Underwriter, to the effect that (i) the information contained in the Official Statement under
the captions “THE ISSUER” and “THE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT” present a fair
and accurate summary of the matters referred to therein and does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading and (ii)
it has no reason to believe that on the Closing Date the Official Statement contains any
untrue statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state any material fact necessary
to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading (in each case, except for the financial statements or other financial,
forecast, technical, operating, statistical, demographic or accounting statements and data
contained therein and the information concerning The Depository Trust Company and its
book-entry only system included therein, as to which no view is expressed);

(i)  the Issuer and the Underwriter shall have received a verification report of
Causey Demgen & Moore P.C. dated the Closing Date, and addressed to the Issuer, the
Trustee, the Underwriter and Bond Counsel, to the effect that the arbitrage yield
calculations provided by the Underwriter are mathematically accurate;

(J)  the Underwriter shall have received an opinion, dated the Closing Date and
addressed to the Issuer, the Trustee and the Underwriter, of counsel to the Servicer, or in
lieu of an opinion, a certificate executed by an authorized officer of the Servicer, to the
effect that: (i) the Servicer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation, and is duly qualified and in
good standing to transact in the State any and all business contemplated by the Servicing
Agreement to be conducted by it and possesses all requisite power, licenses, permits and
franchises to conduct any and all business contemplated by the Servicing Agreement to be
conducted by it and to execute, deliver and comply with its obligations under the terms of
the Servicing Agreement; (ii) the execution, delivery and performance of the Servicing
Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action; (iii) the Servicer
is an FHA-approved, VA-approved, and USDA-RHS-approved mortgagee and meets all
requirements of applicable laws so as to be eligible to purchase FHA-insured,
VA-guaranteed and USDA-RHS-guaranteed mortgage loans; (iv) the Servicer has been

121



approved by GNMA to issue mortgage-backed securities guaranteed by GNMA,; (v) the
Servicing Agreement constitutes a valid and binding agreement of the Servicer enforceable
against the Servicer in accordance with its terms (except as enforceability may be limited
by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar laws or equitable principles relating
to or limiting creditors’ rights generally and by public policy limitations on the
enforceability of indemnities and provided that no opinion need be expressed as to the
availability of equitable remedies); (vi)the execution and delivery of the Servicing
Agreement by the Servicer and the performance and compliance with its terms in the
manner contemplated therein will not violate (a) its certificate of incorporation or bylaws
or (b) any laws in existence at the time of execution which could have any material adverse
effect whatsoever upon the validity, performance or enforceability of any of the terms of
the Servicing Agreement applicable to the Servicer and will not constitute a material
default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a material
default) under, or result in the material breach of, any material contract, agreement or other
instrument to which the Servicer is a party or which may be applicable to it or any of its
assets; (vii) there is no litigation pending or to such counsel’s or authorized officer’s
knowledge, threatened, that would adversely affect the execution or validity of the
Servicing Agreement by the Servicer, and there are no other legal or governmental
proceedings other than ordinary routine litigation incident to the business conducted by the
Servicer pending (or to the best of such counsel’s or authorized officer’s knowledge,
threatened or contemplated by governmental authority or others) to which the Servicer is a
party or by which the Servicer or any property of the Servicer is subject, which, if
determined adversely to the Servicer would individually or, in the aggregate, have a
material adverse effect on the financial position or results of the operations of the Servicer;
and (viii) the statements under the heading “The Servicer’ in the Official Statement do not
include any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material facts necessary
to make the statements under such heading, in the light of the circumstances under which
they are made, not misleading;

(k)  the Underwriter shall have received the (A) opinion of Chapman and Cutler
LLP, counsel to the Underwriter (““Underwriter’s Counsel’’), dated the Closing Date, and
addressed to the Underwriter, to the effect that (i) under existing law, the Bonds may be
offered and sold without registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (ii) the
Indenture is not required to be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended
and (iii) the agreement of the Issuer contained in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement
provides a reasonable basis for the Underwriter to conclude that the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement satisfies the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12, as amended, and (B) negative
assurances letter of Underwriter’s Counsel, dated the Closing Date, and addressed to the
Underwriter, to the effect that Underwriter’s Counsel has no reason to believe that on the
Closing Date the Official Statement contains any untrue statement of a material fact or
omitted or omits to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading (in each case,
except for the financial statements or other financial, forecast, technical, operating,
statistical, demographic or accounting statements and data contained therein and the
information concerning The Depository Trust Company and its book-entry only system
included therein, as to which no view is expressed);

122



() the Underwriter shall have received written evidence satisfactory to it that
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. has assigned a rating of at least ” to the Bonds;

(m)  the Underwriter shall have received (i) evidence satisfactory to it of the
approval of the Bonds by the Texas Bond Review Board (the ““Board’’), or the Board’s
Executive Director or his designee, and (ii) an unqualified opinion or certificate, dated on
or prior to the Closing Date, of the Attorney General of the State approving the Bonds to
the extent required by law, accompanied by the certificate of the Comptroller of the Public
Account of the State of Texas as to official registration of the Bonds; and

(n)  the Issuer shall furnish or cause to be furnished by such additional legal
opinions, securities, instruments and other documents, as the Issuer, the Underwriter, Bond
Counsel or Disclosure Counsel may reasonably request, to enable such counsel to render
their respective opinions or to evidence compliance with legal requirements, the truth and
accuracy, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, of the representations contained
herein and of the statements and information contained in the Official Statement and the
due performance or satisfaction on or prior to the Closing Date of all agreements then to
be performed and all conditions then to be satisfied.

All the opinions, letters, securities, instruments and other documents mentioned above or
elsewhere in this Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to be in compliance with the provisions
hereof if, but only if, they are in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Underwriter,
and the Underwriter shall have the right to waive any condition set forth in this Section 7.

8. Termination. The Underwriter may terminate its obligations hereunder by written
notice to the Issuer if, at any time subsequent to the date hereof and on or prior to the Closing Date:

(@ (i) legislation shall have been enacted by the Congress, or introduced in the
Congress, or recommended to the Congress for passage by the President of the United
States or the United States Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue Service or
any member of the United States Congress, or favorably reported for passage to either
House of Congress by any Committee of such House to which such legislation has been
referred for consideration, or (ii) a decision shall have been rendered by a court established
under Article 111 of the Constitution of the United States or the United States Tax Court, or
(iii) an order, ruling, regulation or communication (including a press release) shall have
been issued by the United States Department of the Treasury or the Internal Revenue
Service, or (iv) any action shall be taken or statement made by or on behalf of the President
of the United States or the United States Department of the Treasury or the Internal
Revenue Service or any member of the United States Congress which indicates or implies
that legislation will be introduced in the United States Congress, in each case referred to in
clauses (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv), with the purpose or effect, directly or indirectly, of imposing
federal income taxation upon interest to be received by any holder of Bonds; or

(b) legislation shall be enacted or any action shall be taken by the Securities

and Exchange Commission which, in the opinion of counsel to the Underwriter, has the
effect of requiring the offer or sale of the Bonds, to be registered under the Securities Act

123



of 1933 or the Indenture to be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 or any event
shall have occurred or shall exist which, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter,
makes untrue or incorrect in any material respect any statement or information contained
in the Official Statement or is not reflected in the Official Statement but should be reflected
therein in order to make the statements or information contained therein not misleading in
any material respect; or

(¢) (i) inthe Underwriter’s reasonable judgment, the market price of the Bonds
is adversely affected because: (a) additional material restrictions not in force as of the
effective date hereof shall have been imposed upon trading in securities generally by any
governmental authority or by any national securities exchange; (b) the New York Stock
Exchange or other national securities exchange, or any governmental authority, shall
impose, as to the Bonds or similar obligations, any material restrictions not now in force,
or increase materially those now in force, with respect to the extension of credit by, or the
charge to the net capital requirements of, the Underwriter; (c)a general banking
moratorium shall have been established by federal, New York or State authorities; or (d) a
war involving the United States of America shall have been declared, or any other national
or international calamity, including any act of terrorism, shall have occurred (economic or
otherwise), or any conflict involving the armed forces of the United States of America shall
have escalated to such a magnitude as to materially affect the Underwriter’s ability to
market, take delivery of or redeliver Bonds; (ii) there shall have occurred any material
change, or any other event in the securities or debt markets, which, in the Underwriter’s
opinion, materially adversely affects the marketability of the Bonds or the market price
thereof, or any material development involving a prospective change in, or affecting
particularly the economy of the geographic areas constituting the program area with respect
to the Bonds, or the mortgage market of said jurisdiction, which, in the Underwriter’s
reasonable judgment, materially impairs the investment quality of the Bonds, or, in the
Underwriter’s reasonable judgment, materially impairs the ability of the Underwriter to
market, take delivery of, or redeliver the Bonds; (iii) any litigation shall be instituted,
pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale or delivery of the Bonds or in
any way contesting or affecting any authority for or the validity of the Bonds, any of the
proceedings of the Issuer taken with respect to the issuance, sale, release or delivery
thereof, the pledge or application of any moneys or Certificates provided for the payment
of the Bonds or the existence or powers of the Issuer; or (iv) any written notice shall have
been given by the Rating Agency of any intended downgrading, suspension or withdrawal
of the credit rating of the Bonds by the Rating Agency.

9. Expenses. If a Closing shall take place hereunder, the Issuer shall pay the

Underwriter’s Fee, the fees and expenses (including any legal expenses) of the Trustee, the fees
and expenses of Bond Counsel, the fees and expenses of Disclosure Counsel, the fees and expenses
of the Financial Advisor, the rating agency fee, printing and electronic posting costs, the
verification fee (if any), and all other costs of issuing the Bonds, but only from money deposited
in the Cost of Issuance Fund established under the Indenture.

The Underwriter shall pay its own fees and expenses, unless otherwise agreed by the Issuer.

The Servicer and the Lenders executing the Servicing Agreement and the Lender Agreements,

124



respectively, shall pay their own expenses, including the fees and expenses of their respective
counsels.

In the event that a closing does not take place, the Issuer shall not be responsible for any
fees or expenses incurred in connection with the transactions contemplated under this Purchase
Agreement.

10. Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the Issuer under this
Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing to the Issuer at its address set
forth above, and any notice or other communication to be given to the Underwriter under this
Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing to Raymond James &
Associates, Inc., 5820 Patterson Avenue, Suite 100, Richmond, Virginia 23226; Attention: Chris
Spelbring.

11. Successors. This Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the Issuer and
the Underwriter (including their successors or assigns) and no other person shall acquire or have
any right hereunder or by virtue hereof. All the representations, covenants and agreements
contained herein shall remain operative and in full force and effect and shall survive delivery of
and payment for the Bonds hereunder, regardless of any investigation made by or on behalf of the
Underwriter.

12.  Governing Law. This Purchase Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State
of Texas.

13. Counterparts. This Purchase Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts each of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

125



14. Effectiveness. This Purchase Agreement shall become effective upon the execution
of the acceptance hereof by the Issuer.

Very truly yours,

RAYMOND JAMES & ASSOCIATES, INC.

By:

Christopher Spelbring
Managing Director
Accepted on February __, 2023:

TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION

By:

David Long
President

126



SCHEDULE |

MATURITY SCHEDULE

$
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Series 2023A (Tax-Exempt)

Total Principal Amount of Serial Bonds (Price of Each Maturity: 100%)

PRINCIPAL INTEREST
MATURITY DATE AMOUNT RATE
$ Total Principal Amount of Term Bonds
% Term Bonds Due 1,20 (Price: %)
% Premium Term Bonds Due 1,20 (Price: %)
% Premium Term Bonds Due 1,20 (Price: %)
% Premium Term Bonds Due 1,20 (Price: %)

% Premium PAC Bonds Due 1,20 (Price: %)

127



NOTE: The 10% Test was met for each maturity except the following maturities:

128



ExXHIBIT A

CERTIFICATE OF PURCHASER

$
TEXAS STATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds
Series 2023A (Tax-Exempt)

I, the undersigned, an authorized officer of Raymond James & Associates, Inc., as the sole
Underwriter (in such capacity, the “Purchaser’”) with respect to the above-described bonds (the
“Bonds’”) being issued by the Texas State Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Issuer’”), hereby
certifies and represents, based upon the information available to it, as follows:

(1)  Public Offering. On or before the Sale Date, the Purchaser offered all the
Bonds to the Public in a bona fide initial offering at the initial public offering prices listed
on Attachment A (the ““Initial Offering Prices™). Included in Attachment A is a copy of
the pricing wire or similar communication used to document the initial offering of each
Maturity to the Public at the related Initial Offering Prices.

(2)  Sale of the General Rule Maturities. As of the date of this certificate, for
each Maturity of the General Rule Maturities, the first price at which at least 10% of such
Maturity was sold to the Public is the Initial Offering Price, and all of the Bonds comprising
the first 10% of sales for each General Rule Maturity were sold at the same price.

(3) Initial Offering Price of the Hold-the-Offering Price Maturities. As set
forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Purchaser has agreed in writing that, (i) for each
Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering Price Maturities, it would neither offer nor sell any of
the Bonds of such Maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the Initial Offering
Price for such maturity during the Holding Period for such Maturity (the
“hold-the-offering-price rule”), and (ii) any selling group agreement shall contain the
agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and any retail distribution
agreement shall contain the agreement of each broker-dealer who is a party to the retail
distribution agreement, to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule. Pursuant to such
agreement, the Purchaser has not offered or sold any Maturity of the Hold-the-Offering
Price Maturities at a price that is higher than the respective Initial Offering Price for that
Maturity of Bond during the Holding Period.

(4) Defined Terms.

(@  ““General Rule Maturities” means those maturities of the Bonds
listed in Attachment B hereto as the “General Rule Maturities.”

(b)  ““Hold-the-Offering-Price Maturities”” means those maturities of the
Bonds listed in Attachment B hereto as the “Hold-the-Offering Price Maturities.”

129



()  **Holding Period” means, with respect to a Hold-the-Offering Price
Maturity, the period starting on the Sale Date and ending on the earlier of (i) the
close of the fifth business day after the Sale Date, or (ii) the date on which the
Underwriter has sold at least 10% of such Hold-the-Offering Price Maturity to the
Public at prices that are not higher than the Initial Offering Price for such
Hold-the-Offering Price Maturity.

(d)  “Maturity” means Bonds with the same credit and payment terms.
Bonds with different maturity dates, or Bonds with the same maturity date but
different stated interest rates, are treated as separate Maturities.

(e)  *Public means any person (including an individual, trust, estate,
partnership, association, company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a
related party to an Underwriter. The term “related party” is defined in
U.S. Treasury Regulation § 1.150-1(b) which generally provides that t